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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the member of IDBI
Asset Management Limited will be held Tuesday, 29™ Day of September, 2020 at 4:30 p.m.
through Video Conferencing/other Audio Video Means, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS -

Item No. 1 — Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020 including audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of
Directors, Statutory Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

Item No. 2 -To fix the remuneration of the Statutory auditors :

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution :

‘RESOLVED THATapproval of the members of IDBI Asset Management Limited is hereby
accorded for the remuneration of Rs. 9,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Lakhs only) excluding GST to
MGB & Co., Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (C&AG) pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.

SPECIAL BUSINESS -

Item No. 3 — Re-appointment of Independent Director

Approval for continuation of Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti (02948958)as an Independent
director of the Company for a period of one year from 12 February, 2020 to 11 February,
2021as recommended by the Board of Directors and in this regard to consider and if thought
fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 [including anyamendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with Schedule IV of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to time and based on
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval of Board




of Directors of the Company, the approval of members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for continuation of Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti (02948958), being eligible, as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a
period of one yearfrom 12th February, 2020 to 11 February, 2021, as recommended by the
Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the

Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No. 4 — Re-appointment of Independent Director

Approval for continuation of Shri Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty (00050455)as an
Independent director of the Company for a period of one yearfrom 20" April ,2020 to 19"
April, 2021as recommended by the Board of Directors and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, pass , with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any amendment(s), statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with Schedule 1V
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to
time and based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
approval of Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for continuation ofShri. Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty (00050455),
being eligible, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold office for a period of one year from 20th April,2020 to 19th April, 2021, as
recommended by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No. 5 — Re-appointment of Shri Raj Kishore Sing as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution :




‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with
Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such approvals,
as may be required from time to time, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN : 08654156) as Managing Director & CEO of
IDBI Asset Management Limited for a period of 3 (three) years w.e.f. December 30.,
2019(i.e. Meeting of the Board of Director, wherein the appointment was approved) or the
divestment of IDBI Asset Management Limited, whichever is earlier, on the terms and
conditions including remuneration as specified by the IDBI Bank Limited vide its letter no.
HRD No. 4935/Staff dated December 9, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Raj K. Singh will not be liable to retire by rotation as
per the provisions of the Articles of Association of IDBI Asset Management Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Raj K. Singh is hereby designated as a Key
Managerial Personnel in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8
of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 w.e.f.
February 21, 2019 to perform the duties which may be performed by Managing Director &
CEO under the Companies Act, 2013 and any other duties as may be required from time to
time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Raj K. Singh, Managing Director & CEO be and is
hereby authorized to sign, execute, authenticate any agreement, notice, and/or any other
documents that may be required to perform his duties for the purpose of the business and
digitally sign, authenticate and file, all statutory forms, returns, applications and other
documents as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central
Government and/or such other statutory/regulatory authorities as may be required for and on
behalf of the Company from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Raj K. Singh, Managing Director & CEO of IDBI
Asset Management Limited is entrusted with all the powers as per the Delegation of Powers
already approved by the Board of Directors of IDBI Asset Management Limited and is
authorised to sub-delegate any powers which is assigned to him, to any official of the
Company as he deem fit for the purpose of the business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary and/or Chief Operating Officer &
Chief Financial Officer or such other authorised officials of the Company, as may be
authorised by the Board of Directors, are severally authorised to complete all formalities in
connection with the appointment of Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN : 08654156) as Managing
Director & CEO of IDBI Asset Management Limited, including filing of necessary forms and




returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs/ Registrar of Companies/ SEBI and other
regulatory authorities as applicable and to take all necessary steps to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.’

Item No. 6 — Authorization of related party transactions.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution :

‘RESOLVED THAT in terms of the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act,2013, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of the
Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules notified under the act, as
amended form time to time, the members of the Company hereby approve the continuation of
existing contracts of the Company and further hereby authorise the Board/Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors to approve and enter into contracts and arrangements with related
parties including sub-delegation thereof to a Director/Committee of Directors, as it may think
fit including granting of omnibus approval in compliance with the provisions of Section177
of the Companies Act, 2013, for an aggregate value not exceeding Rs. 50croresfor all the
contracts and/or arrangements whether entered into in ordinary course of business or not
and/or whether at arm’s length price or not or at such price with the recommendation and
approval of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors of the Company for their
approval, without any further reference to the shareholders of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the authority and power to accept any
modification(s), in the proposal as may be required at the time of according/granting their
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions to such contracts or arrangements proposed to
be entered with the related parties and as agreed to by the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the
Board, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute
such deeds, documents and agreements, as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem
necessary, proper or desirable and to settle or give instructions or directions for settling any
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise and to give effect to such modifications,
changes, variations, alterations, deletions, addition as regards the terms and conditions, as it
may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit and proper in the best interest of the Company,
without requiring any further approval of the members and intent that members shall be
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or
any of the powers, herein conferred, to a Director/duly constituted committee of directors, to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.’




Place: Mumbai
Date: September 24, 2020

Registered office:
IDBI Tower, World Trade Centre,
Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai 400 005

By the order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Ajit Joshi)

Company Secretary




NOTES :

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, THE PROXY
FORM DULY COMPLETED SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FOURT EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.
BLANK PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN
TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN
PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH
PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

2. Members/Proxies/Representatives should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for
attending the meeting. Only Members carrying the attendance slips or holders of valid
proxies registered with the Company will be permitted to attend the meeting. In case of
shares held in joint names or shares held under different registered folios wherein the
name of the sole holder/first joint-holder is same, only the first joint-holder/sole holder or
any proxy appointed by such holder, as the case may be, will be permitted to attend the
meeting

3. The relevant explanatory statements pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies
Act,2013 in respect of business under item no.2 to 5

4. Corporate members intending to depute their authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send certified true copy of the Board resolution authorizing the
representative to attend and vote on their behalf in the Meeting.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2 :

The office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) has vide their letter
no./CA.V/COY/Central Government,IDBIAS(1)/262 dated August 14th 2020continued the
appointment of MGB & Co., as statutory auditors of the Company for the financial year
2020-21 in terms of section 139 & 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.

As per the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of Auditors appointed
by C& AG, shall be fixed by the Company in the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the
Notice of the Annual General Meeting includes an item pertaining to the remuneration of
MGB & Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective

relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution mentioned in Item No. 2 for the approval
of the members.

Item no. 3 :&Item No. 4

The Members of the Company at their Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 12" February, 2015, had approved the appointment of Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti (DIN:
02948958) for a period of five years from 12" February 2015 to 12" February 2020, and Shri.
Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty(DIN: 00050455) as Independent Directors of the Company
for a period of five years from 20" April, 2015 to 19 April, 2020, pursuant to provisions of
Section 149, 152 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent
Director shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a Special Resolution by the
Company.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 22, 2020 approved continuation of Ms.
Geeta P. Shetti (DIN:02948958) as an Independent Director of the Company for one year
from 12" February 2020 till 11™ February 2021 and Shri A.V. Rammurty (DIN:00050455) as
an Independent Director of the Company for one year from 20™ April 2020 till 19" April
2021 subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti and Shri. Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty, Non-Executive
Independent Directors of the Company, being eligible for re-appointment, have given their
consents as well as requisite disclosures along with a declaration to the Board that they meet
the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013




and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company,
each of the said Director fulfil the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules
framed there under and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended for re-appointment of Independent Director.

The Board of Directors considers that Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti and Shri. A.V. Rammurty
have requisite expertise, versatility, extensive and enriched experience that will be of benefit
to the Company and hence considered continuation of their Independent Directorship for
further period of One year.

Ms.Geeta P. Shetti has nearly four decades of experience in Banking sector. She
superannuated as General Manager of Indian Overseas Bank in 2014. She has rich experience
in the fields of Inspection, Risk Management, Compliance, Customer Service and Anti
Money Laundering. She has served as the Principal Officer of Indian Overseas Bank in her
capacity as the Head of Operation Department of the Bank. She had been on the Boards of
CORDEX, a company formed under the auspice of IBA, and Universal Sompo General
Insurance Co. Limited.

Shri. Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty during his illustrious career with IDBI Bank Ltd. has
headed various functions of the Bank such as Research & Planning and Market Research
Dept, Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Cell, Risk Management Dept and the Corporate
Strategy & Planning Dept. He has served as the Banks’ nominee Director on the Boards of
various Companies. He has been an Independent Director on the Board of Man Industries
(India) Ltd.

Ms.Geeta P. Shetti and Shri Annavarapu Venkat Rammurtyare interested in their respective
Resolution as set out in Item No 3 and4.

None of the other Directors (Other than Ms. Geeta P. Shetti and Shri A.V. Rammurty), Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the said
Resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice for
approval by the members.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of your Company, considering the profile and experience of Shri Raj
Kishore Singh (DIN- 08654156) and recommendations of the Nomination Remuneration,
has appointed Shri Raj Kishore Singh (DIN- 08654156) as an Additional Director and then
as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company with effect from December 30, 2019,
initially for a tenure of five years, in terms of the applicable Articles of the Articles of
Association of the Company and Section 152, 161, 196, 197, 198 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, related rules, read with Schedule V to the
said Act. The said appointments are subject to approval by the members of the Company at
this Annual General Meeting of the Company. As required under the provisions of




Companies Act, 2013 and related rules and also under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the relevant information
relating to Shri Raj Kishore Singh, are provided in this explanatory statement. Brief resume
and nature of expertise in specific functional areas & experience: Shri Raj Kishore Singh
aged 44 years, has about 19 years of experience in various fields of financial services viz,
Retail Banking, Forex Services, Credit Appraisal, Project Finance, Credit and Marketing Risk
Management. Immediately prior to joining IDBI Asset Management Limited, Mr. Singh was
General Manager of Market Risk in IDBI Bank Ltd.

Shri Raj Kishore Singh has filed with the Company his consent in writing in Form DIR-2
pursuant to Section 152 of the said Act and Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, expressing his willingness to act as a Director and
the Managing Director of the Company. He is not disqualified from being appointed as a
director, or Managing Director, in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. The requisite Form
DIR-8 is received from him, in terms of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, confirming his eligibility for such appointment. He is not debarred
from holding the office of Director by virtue of any order by SEBI or any other authority.

He has submitted the Notice of interest in terms of Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Form MBP-1.

He shall be responsible for strategic and operational responsibility for overall success of the
Company, including ensuring appropriate and challenging goals and meeting such goals,
planning and scaling profitable business, ensure implementation of Company’s policies and
mainly strengthen the image of the Company.

All Policies of the Company and the related guidelines, the Code of Conduct as amended
from time to time, which are applicable to the Directors, shall also be applicable to the
Managing Director, unless specifically provided otherwise.

Except Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN: 08654156), none of the Directors or any key managerial
personnel or the relatives of the directors or key managerial personnel, is in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Your Board of Directors therefore have, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 including Schedule V recommended for passing of the resolution proposed at Agenda
No.5 of the Notice

Item No. 6 :

IDBI Asset Management Limited (“IDBI AMC?”) is a subsidiary of IDBI Bank Limited. IDBI
AMC has been appointed as Investment Manager for IDBI Mutual Fund by IDBI MF Trustee
Company Limited vide Investment Management Agreement dated February 20, 2010. As per
the agreement the Company is required to manage the funds, ensure compliance with




regulations and accounting of transactions of schemes, formalize, float and launch new
schemes with approval of Trustees, to inter alia issue, sell units of Mutual fund, to invest in
securities as per scheme(s) investment objective on behalf of Mutual Fund, to declare and pay
dividend, calculation of NAV, appointment of intermediaries.

Thus, in order to ensure smooth operations of the Company, IDBI AMC has entered into
various contracts which includes contracts entered into with related parties prior to the
commencement of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the contracts entered during the year
with the approval of the ACB/Board as per the authorization given by the members in the last
Annual General Meeting which are in the ordinary course of business and to support the
operations of the Company.

The above contracts or arrangements are entered into by the Company in the ordinary course
of business and are continuing in nature.

The Company was not required to seek approval of the shareholders under the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956 for contracts entered into ordinary course of business. However, with
the applicability of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01, 2014 such contracts
come under purview of the Related Party Transactions and require approval of the
shareholders on and from the Financial Year 2014-15 in terms of the limits prescribed under
the rules as a percentage of net worth/Turnover of the Company.

Hence, it is proposed to the members to authorize the Audit Committee /Board of the
Company to approve the proposals for entering into further contracts as may be required and
to authorize the Board of Directors with powers to enter into contracts for an aggregate value
not exceeding Rs.50crores whether in ordinary course of business or not and/or at arm’s
length or not and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute such deeds,
documents and agreements, as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem necessary
including sub delegating the authority to a Committee of Directors and/or to authorize
Managing Director & CEO or any other Director as it may deem fit to enter into such
contracts and arrangements with prior approval of the Board.

None of the Directors a Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned in Item no. 5 for approval of
the members.







Form No. MGT-11

Proxy Form

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN

U65100MH2010PLC199319

Name of the Company

IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Registered Office

IDBI Tower, WTC Complex, Cuffe Parade, Colaba,
Mumbai - 400 005.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the member of
IDBI Asset Management Limited will be held on Tuesday, 29" Day of September, 2020 at
04:30 p.m.through Video conferencing.

Member’s Folio

Member’s/Proxy Name Member’s/Proxy Signature




Proxy Form

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN ; U65100MH2010PLC199319

Name of the | : IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Company

Registered Office : IDBI Tower, WTC Complex, Cuffe Parade, Colaba,

Mumbai - 400 005.

Name of the
members(s)

Registered address

E-mail Id

Folio No/Client Id

DP ID

I/We, being the members(s) of shares of the above name company,
hereby appoint

1 Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature : ,or failing him

2 Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature : ,or failing him

3 Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature : ,or failing him




as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the
Tenth Annual General Meeting of the member of IDBI Asset Management Limited will be
held on Tuesday, 29" Day of September, 2020 at 04:30 p.m.and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated
below:

Resolution No.

Signed this................day of................2020 Affix

Revenue

Signature of shareholder......................o.oe
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)..............coeenn.n.

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting.




STATUTORY
AUDITOR’S
APPOINTMENT



OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA .
10, BAHADUR SHAH ZAFAR MARG, NEW DELHI - 110 124 i

No./CA. V/ COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,IDBIAS(]1)/262
Dated :14/08/2020

To

THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
1IDBI MUTUAL FUND, 5TH FLOOR,
MAFATLAL CENTRE, NARIMAN POINT
MUMBAI-400021

Subject : Appointment of Auditors under section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year
2020-2021

Sir/Madam,

I am directed to state that in exercise of the powers conferred by section 139 of the Companies Act 2013,
the Comptroller and- Auditor General of India is pleased to appoint the Chartered Accountant
firms/Limited Liability Partnerships As per Annexurc - II as the Statutory/Joint Statutory/ Branch
Auditors of the company for the year(s) : 2020-202]. Statutory/Joint Statutory Auditor (s) of holding
company shall also be the auditors of Consolidated Financial Statements under section 139 read with
section 129(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. You are requested to contact the concerned auditors individually under intimation to this office

3. The supplementary/test audit under sections 143 (6) & (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 of your
coinpany is entrusted to

PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (SHIPPING)

PLOT NO. C-2, GN. BLOCK, 6 & 7 FLOOR, NEAR ASIAN HEART INST

- BANDRA- KURLA COMPLEX, BANDRA (F)

MUMBAI-400001 .

4 . The remuneration and other allowances payable to the auditors may be regulated as per the provisions
of section 142 of the Companies Act 2013 read with guidelines issued by the Department of Company
Affairs vide no. 7/76 dated 8th April, 1976 and no. 8/6/83 dated 07th June, 1984,

5. The audit fees paid/payable to the auditors as intimated by the Company has been indicated in
Amnexure-11. Any revision in the audit fees payable (including fees for consolidation) for the year 2020~
2021 and item-wise details of all remuneration paid to the auditors for other services (other than statutory
audit) alongwiih the amouni of TA/DA paid for 2019-2020 may be intimated.

The said information may be provided as soon as the Accounts for the year 2019-2020 is finalised so as to
enable this office to review the appointment/ re-appointment of the appointed auditors.

6. The above appointment is subject to the other conditions stipulated in Annexure-I( available on the
CAG’s website hitp://care.cag.gov.in/policy/terms.pdf).

Yours faithfully,

Sy -

{ Rajesh Rajpal )

5r. Admiinistrative Officer

Phone : 011-23509240 Fax : 91-11-23237730, 91-11-23509241 E-mail : saocasS{@cag.gov.in,
sac2cal{@cag.gov.in




Copy forwarded for information and necessary action {o :
/P'I{{ NCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (SHIPPING)

PLOT NO. C-2, G.N. BLOCK, 6 & 7 FLOOR, NEAR ASIAN HEART INST
BANDRA- KURLA COMPLEX, BANDRA (E)
MUMBAI-400001

2. The Registrar of Companies, 100, NETAJ1 SUBHASH ROAD,
MUMBAI-400 002

( Rajesh Rajpal )
Sr. Administrative Officer
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ANNEAURE - 11

LIST OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT FIRMS FOR THE YEAR 2020-2021
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LLP

chartered accountants

14 September 2020

To,

The Managing Director,

IDBI Asset Management Limited
IDBI Mutual Fund, 5th Floor,
Mafatlal Centre, Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400 021.

Sub: Appointment of Statutory Auditors u/s 139 of Companies Act, 2013 for the
financial year 2020-21.

Dear Sir,

We are in receipt of the letter dated 14 August 2020 from the office of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India vide reference no. CA. V/CQOY/Central Government, IDBIAS(1)/262
addressed to our Company with the Annexure of Auditors, wherein our name appears as the
Statutory auditors for the financial year 2020-21.

We are pleased to accept the appointment as Statutory Auditors of IDBI Asset
Management Limited for the financial year 2020-21.

2. We submit our letter of acceptance as under:
(i) We are not disqualified under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) No unreasonable TA/DA, out of pocket expenses will be claimed from the
company.

(iii) During the year of audit, and for one year after (to be counted from the date of
conclusion of the relevant Annual General Meeting of the Company) the LLP
ceases to be Auditor, no assignment for internal audit or consultancy or other
services i.e. accounting and book keeping services, design and implementation
of any financial information system, actuarial services, investment advisory
services, investment banking services, rendering of outsourced financial services,
management services etc. to the company or its holding company or partly
owned subsidiaries of the company (irrespective of the shareholding) or joint
ventures of the company whether under production sharing contract or otherwise
will be accepted directly or indirectly as per explanation given under section 144
of the Companies Act, 2013 by the LLP. Non audit assignments that involve
performing management functions or making management decisions and audit of
annual accounts of subsidiary companies (irrespective of the shareholding)/ Joint
Ventures/ Associates are also prohibited during the year of audit and for one year
after the LLP ceases to be auditor.

(iv) We confirm that No partner/ Chartered Accountant employee of the firm of .
auditors / LLP has been held guilty of professional misconduct by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India during last year.

&CO

CHARTERED A ANTS

Peninsula Business Park, Tower B, 19th Floor, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013.T +91 22 6124 6124 £ mgbhco@mgbco.com

MUMBALI - DELHI - JAIPUR - BENGALARU

MGB & Co. (a partnership firm) converted into MGB & Co.LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with Regn No. AAC-2940) w.e.f 13th May,2014



LLP

chartered accountants

(V) The audit would not be done by a person (i) who is neither a partner or nor an
employee of the CA firm / LLP to which the audit has been allotted: (ii) who was
earlier associated with the audit of the said PSU as a partner / employee of the
retiring auditor.

(vi) We confirm that No partner of the Chartered Accountant firm/ LLP would hold
post of Director (except in case of financial companies) or undertake audit or any
other job/ assignment of any private organization / company which is in the same
line of business or industry as that of the PSU.

We hope you will find the above in Order.
Thanking you,
For MGB & Co. LLP

Chartered accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W AWW-100035

Sanjay Kothari
Partner

Membership number 048215

C.C.To Principal Director of Audit (Shipping)
Plot No. C-2, G.N. Block, 6 &7 Floor, Near Asian Heart Inst.
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai -400 051

The Registrar of Companies
100, Netaji Subhash Road, Mumbai- 400002.

Office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110 124



ﬁ OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA _
G 10, BAHADUR SHAH ZAFAR MARG, NEW DELHI - 110 124 ’
No./CA. V/ COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.,IDBIAS(1)/262

Dated :14/08/2020

To

THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
IDBI MUTUAL FUND, 5TH FLOOR,
MAFATLAL CENTRE, NARIMAN POINT
MUMBAI-400021

Subject : Appointment of Auditors under section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year
2020-2021

Sir/Madam,

I am directed to state that in exercise of the powers conferred by section 139 of the Companies Act 2013,
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India is pleased to appoint the Chartered Accountant
firms/Limited Liability Partnerships As per Annexure - 1l as the Statutory/Joint Statutory/ Branch
Auditors of the company for the year(s) : 2020-2021. Statutory/Joint Statutory Auditor (s) of holding
company shall also be the auditors of Consolidated Financial Statements under section 139 read with
section 129(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. You are requested to contact the concerned auditors individually under intimation to this office

3. The supplementary/test audit under sections 143 (6) & (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 of your
company is entrusted to

PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (SHIPPING)

PLOTNO. C-2, GN. BLOCK, 6 & 7 FLOOR, NEAR ASIAN HEART INST

BANDRA- KURLA COMPLEX, BANDRA (E)

MUMBAI-400001

4 . The remuneration and other allowances payable to the auditors may be regulated as per the provisions
of section 142 of the Companies Act 2013 read with guidelines issued by the Department of Company
Affairs vide no. 7/76 dated 8th April, 1976 and no. 8/6/83 dated 07th June, 1984,

5. The audit fees paid/payable to the auditors as intimated by the Company has been indicated in
Amnexure-11. Any revision in the audit fees payable (including fees for consolidation) for the year 2020-
2021 and item-wise details of all remuneration paid to the auditors for other services (other than statutory
audit) alongwith the amount of TA/DA paid for 2019-2020 may be intimated.

The said information may be provided as soon as the Accounts for the year 2019-2020 is finalised so as to
enable this office to review the appointment/ re-appointment of the appointed auditors.

6. The above appointment is subject to the other conditions stipulated in Annexure-I( available on the
CAG’s website http://care.cag.gov.in/policy/terms.pdf).

Yours faithfully,
Sy

( Rajesh Rajpal )
Sr. Administrative Officer

Phone : 011-23509240 Fax : 91-11-23237730, 91-11-23509241 E-mail : saocaS(@cag.gov.in,
sao2caS(@cag.gov.in




Copy forwarded for information and necessary action to :

ZP'E{NCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (SHIPPING)

PLOT NO. C-2, G.N. BLOCK, 6 & 7 FLOOR, NEAR ASIAN HEART INST

BANDRA- KURLA COMPLEX, BANDRA (E)
MUMBAI-400001

2. The Registrar of Companies, 100, NETAJI SUBHASH ROAD,
MUMBAI-400 002

( Rajesh Rajpal )

Sr. Administrative Officer
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ANNEXURE ~-11

LIST OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT FIRMS FOR THE YEAR 2020-2021

PSU R
s1 Code / Fees in Rs (As
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STATUTORY AUDITOR
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors takes pleasure to present the Tenth Annual Report on the affairs of IDBI
Asset Management Limited along with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31,

2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2020 is summarized as

below:-

(Rs. in Crores
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 36.08 64.84
Total Expenses 31.55 57.42
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extra-ordinary item and tax 4.53 7.42
Extraordinary item : Add/(Subtract) 8.25 2.15
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 12.78 9.57
Current Taxation 1.03 0.94
Deferred Tax :Asset/(Liability) (11.00) (12.97)
Profit/(Loss) 0.75 (4.34)
Earnings per equity share:
Basic 0.04 (0.22)
Diluted 0.04 (0.22)

The total Asset Under Management (AUM) of IDBI Mutual Fund has declined to Rs.3,396crores
as on March 31, 2020 as against Rs. 6,238 crores as on March 31, 2019 due to decrease in Equity
and Liquid AUM. The total income of your company has decreased from Rs.64.84crores during
financial year 2018-19 to Rs.36.08crores during financial year 2019-20. Further, the Net profit has
increased from Net Loss of Rs. 4.34 crores during the financial year 2018-19 to Net profit of Rs.
0.75crores during the financial year 2019-20.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the company’s Authorised Share Capital was Rs.250 crores and
issued, subscribed &paid up share capital was Rs.200 crores divided into 20 crores equity shares of
Rs.10 /- each.

The shareholding pattern of the company as on March 31, 2020 was as under:-




RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND THE COMPANY’S STATE OF AFFAIRS

1)

2)

3)
4)

5)

Your company was incorporated on January 25, 2010, under the Companies Act, 1956, with
the principal activity to act as “Investment Manager” to IDBI Mutual Fund. The Financial
Year 2019-20 is the tenth year of operation of your company. Your company aims to assist the
investors in making informed investment choices through mutual funds.

Your company managed 22 schemes during the year ended March 31, 2020 which consist of
12 equity fund schemes, 6 debt fund schemes, 2 hybrid fund schemes and one each FOF
(Gold) and Gold ETF scheme of IDBI Mutual Fund.

The total Average Assets Under Management (AAUM) during the quarter ended March 31,
2020 was Rs.5,065 crores.

Your company’s revenue from operations has declined from Rs. 59.77crores (financial year
2018-19) to Rs. 29.91crores (financial year 2019-20) i.e. a decrease of 49.96%.

New scheme launched:-

No new schemes were launched in financial year 2019-20

Business Environment:

The financial year 2020 was a challenging year for the economy. GDP growth for FY20 slowed
down to its lowest since FYQ9 at 4.2% from 6.1% in FY19. Manufacturing growth slipped from
4.9% in FY19 to 0.9% in FY20. Growth in Service Sector recorded 5.5% in FY20 from 7.7% in
FY19. Investment demand contracted by 2.8% in FY20 compared to an increase of 9.8% in FY19.
Even consumption demand slipped to 5.3% in FY20 from 7.2% in FY19. This was reflected in
contraction in auto sales, with both passenger car and two wheeler declining by 24.5% (from 2% in
FY19) and 17.5% (from 4.9% in FY19) respectively in FY20. On the positive side, BJP won a
landslide victory in the 2019 General Elections, allowing the incumbent government to continue
for next 5-years, in-line with market expectation as this would ensure policy continuity.




During the year, headline CPI edged up to 4.8% in FY20 from 3.4% in FY19, above RBI’s 4%
target. This was on account of higher food inflation resulting from unusual supply disruption
related to weather. Core inflation, however moderated to 4% in FY20 compared to 5.8% in FY19,
driven by muted oil prices (14% lower in FY20). All elements of core inflation have fallen, except
personal care segment. RBI was able to cut policy rate by 135bps between Feb’19 and Oct’19 as
inflation was well within its target. The second phase of policy rate reductions started in Mar’20 to
support economic activity due to the negative economic shock emanating from covid pandemic.

RBI also undertook a number of liquidity enabling measures such as OMO purchase of Rs 1.5tn in
FY20 and Rs 1.7tn in FYTD21, Targeted long-term repo operations (TLTRO: Rs 1.25tn),
Operation Twist (Rs.700bn in CYTD20) involving selling of short-term securities for buying long-
term to ensure transmission of lower yields across the yield curve and 1% reduction in CRR.

The Government overshot its fiscal deficit target for FY20 from 3.8% (revised estimates) to 4.6%
(provisional actual). This was mainly owing to sharp dip in centre’s net tax revenue growth, which
rose by only 2.9% versus targeted 14.2%. The key reason for this was reduction in corporate tax
rate which was brought down from 35% to 25% to stimulate private investment. As a result
corporate tax collections fell by 16.1% and direct tax collections were down by 8.7%. Spending
momentum was maintained at16% which was in line with budget estimates i.e 16.6%. In FY21,
with pandemic and contraction of economic activity, The Central Government has already
increased its borrowing to Rs 12tn from Rs 7.8tn projected in the Budget.

Global growth considerably slipped to 2.3% in FY20, the lowest rate since the global financial
crisis of 2008-2009. The trade war between US and China, Brexit uncertainty, structural factor
such as low productivity along with impact of the pandemic towards the end of the period was one
of the key contributors to the slowdown in global growth.

Flls remained net buyers for most of FY20, onset of COVID-19 and imposition of nationwide
lockdown led to FIl outflows of US$ 16.6bn in the month of Mar’20. For FY20, FIl outflows were
US$ 6bn led by outflows in the debt segment. DIIs were net buyers in equity during the year.
(source: Bloomberg)

Mutual Fund Industry

Average Assets Under Management (AAUM) of Indian Mutual Fund Industry for the month of
March 2020 stood at Rs. 24,70,882Crore.

Net Assets Under Management (AUM) of Indian Mutual Fund Industry as on March 2020 was
Rs. 22,26,203Crore as compared to Rs. 23,79,584 Crore as on March 31,2019.

The AUM of the Indian MF Industry has grown more than double in the last 5 years i.e. from
Rs.10,82,757 Crore as on 31* March 2015 to Rs. 22,26,203 Crore as on 31° March 2020 .




The total number of folios as on 31*March 2020 stood at 8.97crore. The number of folios doubled
in the last 5 years from 4.17crore as on 31* March 2015.

Over the years, the regulatory operating framework has undergone various changes in order to
bring more transparency in operation and safeguard the Investors’ interest. SEBI has introduced
many tightening norms for Mutual fund Industry. The regulator has changed the valuation
methodology for debt and money market instruments to mark-to-market, doing away with
amortisation entirely.

Measures like change in Investment norms for mutual funds for investment in Debt and Money
Market Instruments, creation of segregated portfolio in mutual fund schemes, extension of timeline
for uploading the NAVs of schemes (except FOFs) on website of AMFI/AMCs in order to enable
consideration of all trades during a day for valuation, deviation from valuation guidelines, etc. are
introduced.

A graded exit load is levied on investors of liquid schemes who exit the scheme up to a period of
seven days mainly with a view to deter the corporates from using liquid funds to park their money
for very short periods and to reduce the risk from large short-term inflows and redemptions in
liquid funds.

Considering the rapid technological advancement and use of digital platforms in Mutual Fund
Industry, to deal with various technology related issues/risks, SEBI has also initiated few steps like
System Audit framework, Technology Committee for Mutual Funds / Asset Management
Companies (AMCs).

Systematic Investment Plan or SIP as it is commonly known, is an investment plan offered by
Mutual Funds wherein one could invest a fixed amount in a mutual fund Scheme periodically at
fixed intervals instead of making a lump-sum investment.SIP has been gaining popularity among
Indian MF investors, as it helps in Rupee Cost Averaging and also in investing in a disciplined
manner without worrying about market volatility and timing the market. Indian Mutual Funds
recoded about 3.12 crore SIP accounts during FY 2019-20 through which investors have been
regularly investing in Indian Mutual Fundschemes.

Over the years, the industry has matured and grown enough to absorb the changes. The whole
Mutual Fund Industry now focuses on growing retail investor base and SIP book.

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

Your Companywas incorporated with the principal activity to act as Investment Manager to IDBI
Mutual Fund vide Investment Management Agreement dated February 20, 2010 entered into by
IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited (‘Trustees to IDBI Mutual Fund’). Your company has carried
on the same business activity during the financial year 2019-20 and there is no change in the nature
of the business of the company done during the year.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been recommended during the financial year under review.




V1.

VILI.

VIII.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there is no
unpaid/unclaimed dividend.

COMPLIANCE WITH NET WORTH REQUIREMENTS AS PRESCRIBED BY SEBI

Your company complies with the minimum net worth requirements of Rs.50 Croresas prescribed
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”). The net worth of your company as on
March 31, 2020 was Rs. 108.56Crores.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company has made Net Profit of Rs. 0.75crores for the year under review. The Board of
Directors have decided to transfer the same to Reserves.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review, your company has not incurred any expense in foreign exchange.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes occurred duringthe financial year ended March 31, 2020 and the
date of the report affecting the financial position of the company.

During the Financial year 2019-20, IDBI Bank (the promoters of the company) has signed a Share
Purchase Agreement (SPA) on November 22, 2019, with Muthoot Finance Limited for sale of
100% stake in your Company. As per the SEBI Regulations, Muthoot Finance Limited, made an
application to SEBI for approval of the same. The SEBI approval is awaited.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, a CSR Committee of the Directors of the Company
has been constituted. The CSR Committee during the year approved constitution of Internal
Committee consisting of Managing Director & CEO, CFO & COO and Head — HR to take
decisions for CSR contribution by the Company. The Committee had identified certain projects, to
which the CSR contributions can be made. However, due to COVID-19 pandemic and resultant
lockdown, the CSR contributions could not be made. The management is confident that during the
financial year 2020-21, the CSR obligations as may be required by the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be fulfilled.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): -




Board of Directors

During the year under review, Shri Krishna Nair Prasad (DIN :02611496) has resigned from the
Board. In his place, Shri Rakesh Sharma(DIN: 06846594) was appointed w.e.f. July 11,2019.

During the year Lt. Gen. (Dr.) Mukesh Sabharwal (DIN: 05155598), retired on September 27,

2019 after completing 5 years as Independent Director of the Company.

Shri Dilip Kumar Mandal (DIN: 03313130) has resigned w.e.f. November 30, 2019 from the
Board due to superannuation from IDBI Bank Limited. Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN :08654156) was
appointed as Managing Director and CEO w.e.f. December 30, 2019.

The Composition of the Board, for the year ended as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Sr. Name of Director Director Designation Date of Date of
No. Identification Appointment | Cessation
Number
1.| Shri Krishna Nair Prasad 02611496 Nominee Director 28/10/2016 31/05/2019
2.| Lt. Gen. (Dr.) Mukesh 05155598 Independent Director | 15/11/2011 27/09/2019
Sabharwal
3.| Shri Dilip Kumar Mandal 03313130 Managing Director 22/08/2016 30/11/2019
and CEO
4.| Shri Rakesh Sharma 06846594 Chairman 11/07/2019 -
5.| Shri Jorty M Chacko 08307961 Director 11/01/2019 -
6. | Shri Annavarapu Venkat 00050455 Independent Director |  20/04/2020 -
Rammurty*
7.| Ms. Geeta Pursappa 02948958 Independent Director | 12/02/2020 -
Shetti*
8. | Shri Arvind Kumar Jain 07911109 Independent Director | 22/03/2018 -
9.| Shri Raj K. Singh 08654156 Managing Director 30/12/2019 -

& CEO

*Re-appointed for a further period of 1 year from the date of completion of their respective period
of five years as Independent Director subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

Shri Dilip K. Mandal (DIN : 03313130) Managing Director & CEO, resigned from the Board of
Directors of the Company due to superannuation from IDBI Bank Ltd w.e.f. November 30, 2019
and Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN : 08654156) was appointed as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f.
December 30, 2019. Other than above, there has been no change in the Key Managerial
Personnelduring the year under review.The List of Key Managerial Personnel, for the year ended
as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

S.No

Name

Designation

Date of Appointment




1.| Shri Raj K. Singh Managing Director &Chief 30/12/2019
Executive Officer

2.| Shri Amit Bhavsar Chief Financial Officer&Chief 28/09/2015
Operating Officer
3. | Shri Ajit Joshi Company Secretary 01/01/2019

Retirement by Rotation

The Board of Director of your company comprises of six Directors of which three Directors are
Independent Directors as on the date of the Annual General Meeting. According to the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 & Articles of Association of the company; out of the remaining
three(i.e. Chairman, Nominee Director and Managing Director & CEQ), the Chairman and the
Managing Director &CEO are not liable to retire by rotation. At the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, no Director is liable to retire by rotation.

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide the operation of the company. The
Notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors of the company. The Agenda
of the Board meeting is circulated a week prior to the Board meeting and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as
the case may be.

During the year under review total of Nine Board meetings were held, the details of the same areas
under: -

Dates on which Board Meetings were Total strength of the Directors present
held Board
April 23, 2019 7

July 11, 2019
August 07, 2019
September 20, 2019
October 24, 2019
November 21,2019
December 30, 2019
February 10, 2020
March 11, 2020

| O O OO O N| N O
| O B O OO N| O o N

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS




(Leave of Absence — LoA)

Name of the
Director

Attendance at the Board Meeting held on

April
23,2019

July 11,
2019

August
07, 2019

Septemb
er 20,
2019

October
24,2019

Novemb
er
21,2019

December
30, 2019

Februar
y 10,
2020

March
11, 2020

Shri Rakesh
Sharma,
Chairman
(DIN:
06846594)

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Shri Krishna
Prasad Nair,
Chairman
(DIN:
02611496)

Present

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applicabl
e

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Shri Jorty M.
Chacko
Director
(DIN:0830796
1)

Present

LoA

Present

Present

Present

Present

LoA

Present

Present

Shri
Annavarapu
Venkat
Rammurty,
Independent
Director
(DIN:0005045
5)

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Ms Geeta
Pursappa
Shetti,
Independent
Director
(DIN:0294895)

Present

Present

LoA

Present

Present

Present

Present

LoA

Present

Lt. Gen. (Dr.)
Mukesh
Sabharwal
(Retd.),
Independent
Director
(DIN:
05155598)

Present

Present

Present

Present

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applicabl
e

Not
Applica
ble

Not
Applica
ble

Shri Arvind
Kumar Jain,
Independent
Director
(DIN:0791110
9)

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Shri Dilip
Kumar Mandal

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Not
Applicabl

Not
Applica

Not
Applica




MD &CEO e ble ble
(DIN:0331313

0)

Shri Raj K. Not Not Not Not Not Not Not Present | Present
Singh Applica | Applica | Applica | Applica | Applica | Applica | Applicabl

MD& CEO ble ble ble ble ble ble e

(DIN :

08654156)

X. AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Audit Committee was constituted in the year 2010 and adopted a charter for its functioning.
The Committee was further reconstituted as per the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the charter was also redefined in lines with the provisions of the said Act. The primaryobjective of
the Committee is to monitor and provide effectivesupervision of the Management’s financial
reporting process, toensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels oftransparency,
integrity and quality of financial reporting.

The Composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2020 was as under: -

S. Name of the Director Particulars Date of

No. Appointment

1. | Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti** Independent Director February12, 2015
(DIN: 02948958) &Chairperson

2. | Shri Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty** Independent Director April 20, 2015
(DIN: 00050455)

3. | Shri Arvind Kumar Jain Additional Independent April 21, 2018
(DIN: 07911109) Director

** Re-appointed for a further period of 1 year from the date of completion of their respective
period of five years as Independent Director subject to approval of the Shareholders of the
Company.

During the year under review, the Committee heldEight meetings, the detail of the same are
summed up as under: -

Dates on which Audit Committee Total strength of the Director’s present

Meetings were held Committee

April 23, 2019 4 4

July 11, 2019 4 4

August 07, 2019 4 3

September 20, 2019 4 4

October 24, 2019 3 3

December 30, 2019 3 3

February 10, 2020 3 2

March 11, 2020 3 3




XI.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

(Leave of Absence — LoA)

Name of the
Director

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting held on

April
23,
2019

July 11,
2019

August
07,
2019

Septem
ber 20,
2019

October
24,
2019

Decem
ber 30,
2019

Februar
y 10,
2020

March
11, 2020

Ms Geeta
Pursappa
Shetti
(DIN:029489
58)

Present

Present

LoA

Present

Present

Present

LoA

Present

Lt. Gen. (Dr.)
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Vigil Mechanism

The company’s Vigil Mechanismincorporates the whistle blower policy pursuant to the provisions
of Section 177(9) of the companies Act, 2013 and companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014. The same is also available on our website www.idbimutual.co.in. A Vigilance Officer
has been appointed, who shall oversee the Vigil Mechanism of the company and report any
Protected Disclosure to the Audit Committee. The protected disclosures can be made by a whistle
blower through an e-mail vigilance@idbimutual.co.inor a letter to the Vigilance Officer or to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

OTHER COMMITTEES

a. Nomination & Remuneration Committee: -

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was constituted in the year 2014 and adopted a
Charter for its functioning. The Committee was further reconstituted as per the Section 178 of




the Companies Act, 2013 and the scope was also redefined in lines with the provisions of the
said Act.The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) works with the Board to
determine the appropriate attributes, skills and experience for the Board as a whole and its
individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and
experience in business, government, education and public service. Characteristics expected of
all Directors include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound
business judgment, ability.

The Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2020 was as
under:-

Sl Name of the Director Particulars Dqte i
Appointment

1 Ms. GeetaPursappaShetti** (DIN: Independent Director February 02, 2015
02948958)

2 ShriAnnavarapuVenkatRammurty** Independent Director April 20, 2015
(DIN: 00050455)

3 Shri Jorty M. Chacko Director January 11,2019

4 Shri Arvind Kumar Jain (DIN: Additional Independent April 21, 2018
07911109) Director

** Re-appointed for a further period of 1 year from the date of completion of their respective
period of five years as Independent Director subject to approval of the Shareholders of the
Company

The meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held three times during the
year under review. The detail of the same has been summed up as under: -

Dates ofNomination and Total strength of the Director’s present
Remuneration Committee Meetings Committee
April 23, 2019 5
July 11, 2019 5
March 11, 2020 4 4

Attendance of Directors at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings

(Leave of Absence — LoA)
Name of the Director Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings held on

April 23, 2019 July 11, 2019 | March 11, 2020

Lt. Gen. (Dr.) Mukesh Sabharwal | Present Present Not Applicable
(Retd.) (DIN: 05155598)




Ms Geeta Pursappa Shetti Present Present Present
(DIN: 02948958)

Shri Annavarapu Venkat Present Present Present
Rammurty (DIN: 00050455)

Shri Jorty M. Chacko Present Leave of Present
(DIN: 08307961) Absence

Shri Arvind Kumar Jain Present Present Present

(DIN: 07911109)

b. Committee of Independent Directors

The company has Committee of Independent Directors in place as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

As on March31, 2020, the composition of the Committee of Independent Directorswas as
under: -

Sk Name of the Director Particulars Da_te &
No. Appointment
1 | Ms.GeetaPursappaShetti** Independent Director February 12,
(DIN: 02948958) 2015
2 | ShriAnnavarapuVenkatRammurty** Independent Director | April 20, 2015

(DIN: 00050455)
3 | Shri Arvind Kumar Jain (DIN: 07911109) Independent Director | April 21, 2018

** Re-appointed for a further period of 1 year from the date of completion of their respective
period of five years as Independent Director subject to approval of the Shareholders of the
Company

The Committee met once during the financial year 2019-20 on March 11, 2020 where all the
Directors were present.

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company has a Committee for Corporate Social Responsibility in place as required by
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the CSR Committee as approved
by the Board is as under: -

S. No. Name of the Director Particulars
1 Shri Jorty Chacko (DIN : 08307961) Director
2 Shri Annavarapu Venkat Rammurty** (DIN: Independent Director
00050455)
3 Shri Arvind Kumar Jain Independent Director
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S. No. Name of the Director Particulars
(DIN: 07911109)

4 Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti** Independent Director
(DIN: 02948958)

** Re-appointed for a further period of 1 year from the date of completion of their respective
period of five years as Independent Director subject to approval of the Shareholders of the
Company

The Committee met once during the financial year 2019-20 on March 11, 2020 where all the
Directors were present.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability confirm: -

a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanationrelating to material
departures.

b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and the profit and loss of the
company for that period.

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d. that proper internal financial controls were laid down and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively.

e. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and

f. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 including
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 the copy of the annual return of the company will available on
the website of IDBI Mutual Fund at www.idbimutual.co.in.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company has received necessary disclosures from the Independent Directors under Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets all the criteria laid down in Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect
their status as Independent Director during the year.
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During the year, the Non Independent Directors of the company had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the company, other than the sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the company.

DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has devised and adopted separate policies for Appointment and Remuneration
being:-

(a) Director’s Appointment and Evaluation Policy; and
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the company has established a vigil mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) for the
employees and the Directors as an avenue to voice concerns relating to unethical behaviour, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the company's code of conduct. The Ombudsperson appointed by
the Board deals with the complaints received and ensures appropriate action. The mechanism also
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons using the mechanism and
provides direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional
cases. No person was denied access to the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy has been prepared in line with the
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and amendments thereto from time to time
and includes the activities as covered under the Schedule VII of the companies act and companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.IDBI AMC
CSR Policy is driven by intent to make a material, visible and lasting difference to the lives of
disadvantaged sections of the society and a sustained positive contribution to the welfare of society
at large through a dedicated CSR budget carved out of profits for assorted but deserving CSR
initiatives on pan-India basis.The said policy is formulated and adopted in lines with the CSR
policy of the IDBI Bank Limited (““Holding Company”) and the same is available on our website
www.idbimutual.co.in.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

Your company is an Investment Manager to IDBI Mutual Fund. Thus, the operations of the
company are guided by the SEBI Regulations and directives and AMFI guidelines issued from
time to time. In compliance with the SEBI circular, the company has in place a policy manual on
managing risks related to the business being managing the operations of IDBI Mutual Fund as per
the Investment Management Agreement and is duly implemented.

OTHER POLICIES OF THE COMPANY
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Your company being an Investment Manager to IDBI Mutual Fund, for its business and operations
purposes, is guided by the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time
which also includes circulars, orders, etc. In accordance with various applicable regulations,the
Company has in place, amongst others as mentioned in the report all the necessary policies.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186

The information required under this head which relates to the Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 is provided in the Note no. 10 under the heading Non-Current Investments of the Balance
Sheet of the company. Members are requested to refer to those notes for the relevant information.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188.

All the Related Party Transactions are entered in the ordinary course of business and are on arm’s
length basis, and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Materially significant related party transactions made by the company with Promoters, Directors or
Key Managerial Personnel, etc. are being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The AOC for
the year under review is attached as Annexure - “A”.

All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The company is not involved in industrial manufacturing; and has not consumed energy more than
required for its day to day operations.
(A) Conservation of energy-
i. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Not Applicable
ii. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Not Applicable
iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: Not Applicable
(B) Technology absorption-
i. The efforts made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable
ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution: Not Applicable
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year):- Not Applicable
a) The details of technology imported
b) The year of import
c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;
and
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable

However, your company has been increasingly using Information Technology systems in its
operations.
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STATUTORYAUDITORS

The office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide letter no.
CA.VICOY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, IDBIAS(1)/262 dated August 14, 2020 has continued
the appointment ofMGB & Co., LLP,as Statutory Auditorsof the Companyfor the financial year
2019-20 in terms of Section 139 & 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 readwith Rule 4 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.

As per the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of Auditors appointed by the
office of C&AG, shall be fixed by the company in the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the
Notice of the Annual General Meeting includes an item pertaining to remuneration of the Auditors
for the year 2020-21.

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by MGB & Co., Statutory
Auditors, in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder,VipinTiwari& Co., Company Secretaries was appointed to conduct the Secretarial
Audit of the company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

The Secretarial Audit report in Form no. MR-3 is attached to the report atAnnexure - “B”. The
same does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the
applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
subsequent modifications thereof and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and
Senior Management of the company. Further, all Board members and Senior Management have
affirmed compliance with the company’s code of conduct for the financial year 2019-20.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, astatement
showing the names and other particulars of theemployees drawing remuneration in excess of the
limitsset out in the said rules isrequired to be provided as part of Director’s report.

Your Directors confirm that there are no employees drawing salaries in excess of the limits set out
in the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS OF THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE

The report of Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor are free from any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS ETC.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134, Schedule IV and the Rules made thereunder of the
Companies Act, 2013, the evaluation process of the Board as a whole, individual Director and
Board Committees for the financial year 2018-19, has been carried out.

A structured questionnaire contained in evaluation sheets covering various aspects of Board's
functioning such as Board's structure, governance, dynamics & functioning and financial reporting
process, was circulated to Board members. The dully filled and signed evaluation sheets were
handed over to Company Secretary & Compliance officer in sealed form from Chairman and all
other Directors and he was instructed to maintain the same as a confidential document and store
them in a fire proof environment.

As part of the performance evaluation process, the Directors evaluated themselves, other board
members, the overall Board as well as functioning of the Board Committees viz., Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee etc.on the basis of well-defined evaluation
parameters as set out in the questionnaire.

The performance evaluation of non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried
out by the Independent Directors at their meeting held on March 11, 2020. The Chairman briefed
the Board on the evaluation conducted at the meeting held on June 29, 2020.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY /JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your company does not have any subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associate company within the
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013.

DEPOSITS

During the financial year 2019-20, the company has neither accepted nor reneweddeposits within
the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and other applicable laws and as such no amount of
principal or interest was outstanding as on date of the Balance Sheet.

XXXI1I. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future during the year under review.




XXXIV. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-

XXXV.

XXXVI.

SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

No fraud by the company or on behalf of the company by its officers or employees under sub-
section (12) of Section 143 has been noticed or reported by the Auditors during the period covered
by our audit.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(Prevention, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace. Your company
firmly believes in providing a safe, supportive, secured and friendly workplace environment - a
workplace where our Values come to life through the underlying behaviors. Positive workplace
environment and a great employee experience are integral parts of our culture. Your company
believes in providing and ensuring a workplace free fromdiscrimination and harassment based on
gender. Your company educates its employees as to what may constitute sexual harassment and in
the event of any occurrence of an incident constituting sexual harassment your company provides
the mechanism to seek recourse and redressal to the concerned individual subjected to sexual
harassment.

To achieve the same, the company has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
the said policy. An Internal Complaints Committee has also been set up to redress complaints
received on sexual harassment.There was no complaint pending as on March 31, 2020.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Management approach to Internal Control Systems:

The company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations. The internal control framework practiced in your company essentially has
twoelements:

1) structures, policies and guidelinesdesigned to achieve efficiency and effectiveness
inoperations and compliance with laws and regulations; and
2) an assurance function provided by Internal Audit.

The company also has documented policies, procedures and manuals for various processeswhich
are periodically reviewed for changes warranteddue to business needs/ regulatory prescriptions and
Industry Standards.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets regularly to review reports, including significant audit
observations and follow-up actions thereon. The Audit Committee also meets the company’s




Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on financial statements, compliance to accounting
policies and procedures, the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems.

The Audit Committee regularly interacts with the Internal Auditors and seeks their views on
improvement in the essential controls followed by the company and also regularly interacts with
the management to understand the steps taken by the company to address the concerns of the
Auditors and ensures that suitable measures are adopted by the company. The Audit committee
being a sub-set of the Board places its recommendations to the Board along with the reports of the
Auditors.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Auditors continuously monitors the efficacyand adequacy of the
internalcontrols/compliance with the objective ofproviding to Audit Committee and the Board
ofDirectors, an independent, objective and reasonableassurance of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the organization’s operating systems, adherence to company’s policies,applicable laws and
processes and manner of safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, risk management, control and governance processes.

Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. To maintain its objectivity and independence,
the Internal Auditors reports to the Audit Committee of the Board. This system ofinternal control
facilitates effective compliance ofSection 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board oversight on the Internal Financial Controls

Based on the framework of internal financial controls andcompliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory andSecretarial Auditors
and external consultants and the reviewsperformed by management and the Audit Committee, the
Boardis of the opinion that the company's internal financial controlswere adequate and effective
during the year ended March 31, 2020.
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We look forward to the same from all our stakeholders as we build your company to be a

frontrunner and role model in the industry.

Place: Mumbai
Date:

(Raj K. Singh)
(DIN : 08654156)
Managing Director & CEO

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI Asset Management Limited

(Rakesh Sharma)
(DIN: 06846594)
Chairman

Annexure — “A”

FORM NO. AOC 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.
2.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

S. No. Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related | IDBI Bank Limited (L65190MH2004G0OI1148838) -
party and nature of | Holding Company
relationship.

2. Nature of | Office space at 8 locations to employees of IDBI AMC on
contracts/arrangements/t | leave and License basis. Office Space is being provided to
ransactions. employees within the office premises of IDBI Bank.

3. Duration of the | The contracts are entered on a perpetual basis subject to
contracts/arrangements/t | termination by either party
ransactions.

4, Salient terms of the | Rent payable as and when raised by IDBI Bank Limited for
contracts or | 8 locations for the F.Y. 2019-20 is Rs.23,83,524/-.
arrangements or
transactions  including
the value, if any.

5. Date of approval by the | April 20, 2015. (in existence prior to commencement of
Board. Companies act 2013)

6. Amount paid as | NIL
advances, if any.

7. Justification for entering | IDBI Bank Limited has more than 1800 branches in India.

into the
contracts/arrangements/t
ransactions.

In order to create synergy between the businesses of two
Companies The Mission of the Company is to promote
Financial inclusion by assisting the common man in making
informed investment choices, through mutual funds and thus
bring to them, the prosperity of the capital markets. Thus it




was felt that operating from the IDBI Bank premises would
yield better results and help the Company in increasing it
business reach to niche clients of the bank at Arm’s length
basis. The rent charged by IDBI Bank is as per market
valuation done by the Bank.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI Asset Management Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Raj K. Singh) (Rakesh Sharma)
Managing Director & CEO Chairman

DIN: 08654156 DIN: 06846594

Annexure — “A”

FORM NO. AOC 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.
2.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

S. No. Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related | IDBI MF  Trustee  Company  Limited (CIN:
party and nature of | U65991MH2010PLC199326) — Group Company.
relationship.

2. Nature of | To recover Secretarial accounts and Administration fees.
contracts/arrangements
/transactions.

3. Duration of the | The Board of IDBI MFT has approved the said policy in its
contracts/arrangements | meeting specifying the percentage and manner of recovering
/transactions. the said service charges.

4, Salient terms of the | Certain common expenses incurred by Asset Management

contracts or
arrangements or
transactions including
the value, if any.

Limited (“IDBI AMC”) such as Rent, Electricity,
Maintenance relating to Mumbai office premises and also a
portion of salary expenses for the services rendered by IDBI
AMC.

Out of the above common expenses we have charged 5% to
MF Trustee Company Limited upto 30" September 2019.
With effect from 1% October 2019 the rate has been revised
to 0.25%.

The IDBI AMC officials take care of the work relating to




secretarial matters, conducting of meetings, ROC work,
accounts/tax matters, SEBI compliance etc. IDBI AMC ig
charged 1% of salary expenses upto 30" September 2019.
With effect from 1% October 2019 the rate has been revised to
0.25%.

Date of approval by the
Board.

October 22, 2013.

Amount paid as | NIL

advances, if any.

Justification for | IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited is a group Company
entering into the | within the 3 tier Structure of IDBI Mutual Fund and is a

contracts/arrangements
/transactions.

wholly owned subsidiary of IDBI Bank Limited. The
Company does not have employees on its rolls and hence the
day to day operations of the said Company is managed bx
the employees of IDBI AMC from their office located at 4'
Floor,IDBI Tower, Cuffe Parade, Colaba Mumbai 400005.
Thus in order to maintain arm’s length relationship with the
Company, it was felt to recover a certain percentage of
expenses as fees for main areas of services.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI Asset Management Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Raj K. Singh) (Rakesh Sharma)
Managing Director & CEO Chairman

DIN: 08654156 DIN: 06846594
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FORM NO. AOC 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso

thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

S. No. Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related | IDBI Bank Limited (L65190MH2004G0OI1148838) -
party and nature of | Holding Company
relationship.

2.  Nature of | Office space at 8 locations to employees of IDBI AMC on
contracts/arrangements/t | leave and License basis. Office Space is being provided to
ransactions. employees within the office premises of IDBI Bank.

3. Duration of the | The contracts are entered on a perpetual basis subject to
contracts/arrangements/t | termination by either party
ransactions.

4. Balient terms of the | Rent payable as and when raised by IDBI Bank Limited for
contracts or | 8 locations for the F.Y. 2019-20 is Rs.23,83,524/-.
arrangements or
transactions  including
the value, if any.

5. Date of approval by the | April 20, 2015. (in existence prior to commencement oOf
Board. Companies act 2013)

6. Amount paid as advances, | NIL
if any.

7. Justification for entering | IDBI Bank Limited has more than 1800 branches in India.
into the | In order to create synergy between the businesses of two
contracts/arrangements/t | Companies The Mission of the Company is to promote
ransactions. Financial inclusion by assisting the common man in making

informed investment choices, through mutual funds and thus
bring to them, the prosperity of the capital markets. Thus it
was felt that operating from the IDBI Bank premises would
yield better results and help the Company in increasing its
business reach to niche clients of the bank at Arm’s length
basis. The rent charged by IDBI Bank is as per market
valuation done by the Bank.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI Asset Management Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Raj K. Singh) (Rakesh Sharma)
Managing Director & CEO Chairman

DIN: 08654156 DIN: 06846594
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FORM NO. AOC 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso

thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

S. No. Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related | IDBI MF  Trustee Company Limited (CIN:
party and nature of | U65991MH2010PLC199326)— Group Company.
relationship.

2. Nature of | To recover Secretarial accounts and Administration fees.
contracts/arrangements/t
ransactions.

3. Duration of the | The Board of IDBI MFT has approved the said policy in its
contracts/arrangements/t | meeting specifying the percentage and manner of
ransactions. recovering the said service charges.

4. Balient terms of the | Certain common expenses incurred by Asset Management
contracts or | Limited (“IDBI AMC”) such as Rent, Electricity,
arrangements or | Maintenance relating to Mumbai office premises and also a
transactions  including | portion of salary expenses for the services rendered by
the value, if any. IDBI AMC.

Out of the above common expenses we have charged 5%
to MF Trustee Company Limited upto 30" September
2019. With effect from 1* October 2019 the rate has been
revised to 0.25%.
The IDBI AMC officials take care of the work relating to
secretarial matters, conducting of meetings, ROC work,
accounts/tax matters, SEBI compliance etc. IDBI AMC is
charged 1% of salary expenses upto 30" September 2019.
With effect from 1% October 2019 the rate has been revised
t0 0.25%.

5. Date of approval by the | October 22, 2013.

Board.

6. Amount paid as advances, | NIL
if any.

7. ustification for entering | IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited is a group Company
into the | within the 3 tier Structure of IDBI Mutual Fund and is a
contracts/arrangements/t | wholly owned subsidiary of IDBI Bank Limited. The
ransactions. Company does not have employees on its rolls and hence

the day to day operations of the said Company is managed
by the employees of IDBI AMC from their office located at




4™ Floor, IDBI Tower, Cuffe Parade, Colaba Mumbai
400005. Thus in order to maintain arm’s length
relationship with the Company, it was felt to recover a
certain percentage of expenses as fees for main areas of
Services.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI Asset Management Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Raj K. Singh) (Rakesh Sharma)
Managing Director & CEO Chairman

DIN: 08654156 DIN: 06846594




VIPIN TIWARI & CO.
Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

IDBI TOWER, WTC Complex, Cuffe Parade,
Colaba, Mumbai — 400005

I, Vipin Mahendra Kumar Tiwari, Practising Company Secretary have conducted the Secretarial
Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. |, have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(to the extent applicable)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

Registered Office: - F/262/1, Dreams The Mall, L.B.S Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai — 400078
Contact: - +91 9029955553 / 9892470712
E-mail:- pcsinfoOl@gmail.com Tel: - 022 4120 1837
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act).

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 - (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 - (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 - (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 - (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 -
(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii) Listing Agreement entered with stock exchange (Not Applicable to the Company during
the audit period)
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. made thereunder.

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test check basis,
the Company has complied with the law specifically applicable to the Company i.e. The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 and amendment from
time to time.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. Further the Company has received Sow Cause
Notice from SEBI and the Company has duly replied to the same. The Company has also paid
the Settlement Fees as per the Settlement Order passed by SEBI.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda were sent in
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or
majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of
the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Vipin Tiwari & Co.,
Company Secretaries
Date: - 16" September, 2020
Place: - Mumbai

Vipin Mahendra Kumar Tiwari
Proprietor

Membership No. A40765,

CP No. 17328

UDIN: A040765B000721764
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Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

| have also obtained the Management representation / Clarifications, wherever
required, about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management and my examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.



Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3)

of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1 CIN U65100MH2010PLC199319
2 Registration Date 25TH JANUARY, 2010
3 Name of the Company IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
4 Category/Sub-Category of Company PUBLIC COMPANY
IDBI TOWER, WTC COMPLEX, CUFFE PARADE, COLABA, MUMBALI - 400 005,
. . MAHARASHTRA.Tel: (022) 66442800
5 Adcth'e:s;:1 (:f 'lthe Registered office and Fax: (022) 66442801
comtact detat’s Website: www.idbimutual.co.in
Email: corp.secretarial@idbimutual.co.in
6 Whether listed company NO
7 Name, Address and Contact details of Kfintech Technologies Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the

total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

S.No. Name and Descrlptl(?n of main NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the Company
products/ services
The principal activity of the Mutual
1 Fund is to provide Asset Management 66301* 100.00%
Services.
*(As per National Industrial Classifications (NIC) 2008 code)
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holding/ 0 .
. s % of shares Applicable
S.No. Name of the Company CIN Sub51d.1ary/ held Section
Associate
1 IDBI BANK LIMITED L65190MH2004GOI148838 Holding 66.67 2(46)
IDBI CAPITAL MARKETS &
SECURITIES LIMITED (FORMERLY .
2 KNOWN AS IDBI CAPITAL MARKET U65990MH1993G0OI075578 Associate 33.33 2(6)
SERVICES LIMITED)




IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Shareholding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change in

Category of Shareholders Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total Shares Share.holdin
Shares g during the
year

A. Promoter(s)
(1)Indian
a) Individual/ HUF

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt. (s)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 6,66,60,000 0 6,66,60,000 33.33 6,66,60,000 0 6,66,60,000 33.33 0
e) Banks/FI 13,33,40,000 0 13,33,40,000 66.67 13,33,40,000 0 13,33,40,000 66.67 0
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(1):- 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 Nil
2) Foreign
a) NRIs -Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding .
(A)= (A)1)+(A)(2) 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 Nil
B. Public Shareholding
L.Institutions
a)Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b)Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c)Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d)State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e)Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f)Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g)Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h)Foreign Venture Capital
Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




Foreign Holdings

(FIIs/FCs/FFIs/NRIs/OCBs) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
2. Non- Institutions
a) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i. Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ii. Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
up to Rs.1lakh
ii)Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
in excess of Rs.1 lakh
c) Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Total Public Shareholding

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 0 0 20,00,00,000 100 Nil




ii. Shareholding of Promoters

S. No. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
year
No. of Shares |% of total  |% of Shares |No. of Shares |% of total Shares (% of Shares . .
% change in share-holding
Shares of  (Pledged/ of the Company |Pledged/ durine the vear
the encumbered encumbered gHhey
Company |to total to total
shares shares
1 IDBI Bank Limited 13,33,40,000 66.67 0 13,33,40,000 66.67 0 0
(CIN: L65190MH2004GOI148838)
along with six other individual
nominees.
2 IDBI Capital Markets & Securities 6,66,60,000 33.33 0 6,66,60,000 33.33 0 0
Limited (Formerly known as IDBI
Capital Market Services Ltd) (CIN:
U65990MH1993GO0I1075578)
Total 20,00,00,000 100 0 20,00,00,000 100 0 0
iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding please specify, if there is no change): No CHANGE
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
S. No. Particulars % of total % of total
h f h f
No. of Shares shares 0 No of Shares | > oroo©
the the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year 20,00,00,000.00 100.00 20,00,00,000.00 100.00
5 Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying the - - - -
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment sweat equity etc. - - - -
3 At the end of the year 20,00,00,000.00 100.00 20,00,00,000.00 100.00




iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NIL

S. No.

For each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

% of total shares of the

No. of shares
Company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for Increase/
Decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

v. Shareholding

of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NIL

S. No.

For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

% of total shares of the

No. of shares
Company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/Decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year (or on the|
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

Nil

V. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

Secured Loans excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)Principal
Amount

ii)Interest due
but not paid

iii)Interest
accrued but not
due

Total(i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Addition

Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i)Principal
Amount

ii) Interest due
but not paid

iii) Interest|
accrued but not|
due

Total (i+ii+iii)




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Shri Dilip Kumar Mandal Shri Raj K. Singh (DIN :
(DIN: 03313130) 08654156) (Managing Director &
(Managing Director & CEO) CEO)
(For the period from April 1, 2019 to (for the period December 30,
Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the 27,93,006 2061219
1 Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s B 1,095,500
17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under
section17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 ] ]
2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity N N
Commission - as % of profit - -
4 -
- others specify
5 Others, please specify - -
Total(A1) 27,93,006 22,56,719
TOUT COIMpdITy IS a GO VETTUTIETIT COITTPdITy dS PTOVIUEU UITAET SECTIOIT Z{#3] OT
Ceiling as per the Act the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly as per the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs circular dated June 05, 2015 the provisions of Section 197 is not

licahl n xzonr C




B.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

S. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

Fee for attending Board/
Committee meetings to
Independent Directors

Refer excel sheet

Refer excel sheet

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors:-

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total(2)

Total(B) =(1)+(2)

Total Managerial Remuneration(A+B)

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Not more than Rs. 1 Lakh per meeting of Board or Committee thereof




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

S.No. [Particulars of Remuneration [ Key Managerial Personnel
CFO Shri.| Company Secretary | Total
Amit Bhavsar Shri. Ajit Joshi
1 Gross salary
48,78,888 20,71,956| 69,50,844
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1)of - - -
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax Act,1961 - - -
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3)Income-tax - - -
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - -
- as % of profit - - -
- others, specify - - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total 48,78,888 20,71,956| 69,50,844
VIIL. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NONE
Details of Penalty/ A
A . ppeal made,
Type Section of the Companies Act Brief Description Coriglt;lllxstl::llil;;t{’ees ﬁlét]tl;;léyo[gg{,] if any !give
A details)
imposed
A.COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
B.DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
(Raj K. Singh) (Rakesh Sharma)
Managing Director & CEO Chairman

DIN: 08654156

DIN: 06846594




B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
Lt. Gen. (Dr.) Mukesh . . -
Sabharwal (Retd.) Mr. A.V Rammurty | Ms. Geeta Pursappa Shetti | Mr. Arvind Kumar jain
1 Independent Directors
» Fee for attending Board/Committee 2,85,000.00 6,25,000.00 5,25,000.00 6,35,000.00|  20,70,000.00
Meetings
* Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
* Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) 2,85,000.00 6,25,000.00 5,25,000.00 6,35,000.00 20,70,000.00
2 Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
¢ Fee for attending Board/ Committee
Meetings
. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
¢ Commission
* Others, please specify
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (B) = (1 +2) 2,85,000.00 6,25,000.00 5,25,000.00 6,35,000.00 20,70,000.00
Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of IDBI Asset Management Limited
Report on the audit of financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDBI Asset Management Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and loss, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 24.15 to the financial statements which describes that the extent to which the
COVID-19 Pandemic will impact the Company’s results will depend on future developments, which are
highly uncertain for which the Company will continue to monitor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors Report along with annexures, and the Secretarial Audit Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Peninsula Business Park, Tower B, 19th Floor, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013 T +91 22 6124 6124 E mgbco@mgbco.com

MUMBAI «- DELHI « JAIPUR - BENGALARU

MGB & Co. (a partnership firm) converted into MGB & Co LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with Regn No. AAC-2940) w.e.f 13th May,2014
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records
of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Orde
We are enclosing report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in the "Annexure B” on the directions and sub directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
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The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Company and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us,
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act regarding managerial remuneration are not
applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts having any material
foreseeable losses; and

There are no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year.

For MGB &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
£irm Registration Number 101180WAN-100035

Sanjay Kothar
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Mumbai, 22 May 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAABM6831



&CO

LLP

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 7(I) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date to the members of IDBI Asset Management Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

i.(@)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion the

vi.

vii.

frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations, given to us, no discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property and hence clause i (c) of the Order is not applicable.
Considering the nature of business, Clause (ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
given any loans/ guarantees nor provided any security. In respect of investments made, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Central Government of India has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the activities carried on by of
the Company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and explanations given to us:

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and others as
applicable have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues outstanding as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

There are no amounts on account of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise or value added tax outstanding as at 31 March 2020 which are yet to be deposited
on account of any dispute except as stated under.

Name of Nature of | Period to Amou Forum where dispute is pending
the Dues which nt in
Statues amount Rs
relate
MVAT Act VAT FY 2011-12 28,34,456/- | Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax Appeals
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According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from bank / financial institution / Government or issued
debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans
during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any
such case by the Management.

According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us,
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act regarding managerial remuneration are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, para 3(xi) of the Order does not apply to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in the business of management
of various mutual fund schemes of IDBI Mutual Fund and deals or trades in securities for and on behalf of
IDBI Mutual Fund and therefore the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For MGB &Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Eirm Registration Number; 101189WAN-100035
\

Sanjay Kothar —
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Mumbai, 22 May 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAABM6831
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in our report of even date to the members of the IDBI Asset Management Limited on the
accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Si Directions u/s 143 (5) of the Auditors’ reply on action Impact on
No Companies Act, 2013 taken on the directions the
financial
statement
1 Whether the company has According to the Nil
system in place to process all information and
the accounting transactions explanation given to us,
through IT system? If yes, the the Company has system
implications of processing of in place to process all the
accounting transactions outside accounting transactions
IT system on the integrity of through IT system
the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may
be stated.
2 Whether there is any According to the Nil
restructuring of an existing loan information and
or cases of waiver/write off of explanations given to us,
debts /loans/interest etc. made by there are no cases of
a lender to the company due to waiver/ write off of debts/
the company’s inability to repay loans/ interest etc. The
the loan? If yes, the financial Company does not have
impact may be stated any loans
3 Whether funds According to the Nil
received/receivable for specific information and
schemes from central/ state explanation given to us,
agencies were properly accounted the Company has not
for/ utilized as per its term and received any funds for
conditions? List the cases of specific schemes from
deviation. central/ state agencies

For MGB &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Eirm Registration Number; 101150WAN-100035
§

Sanjay Kothar —

Partner

Membership Number 048215

Mumbai, 22 May 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAABM6831
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
as referred to in paragraph 7 (lll)(f) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date to the members of IDBlI Asset Management Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IDBI Asset Management Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MGB &Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

kirm Registration Number 101188WAN-100035

Sanjay Kothar
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Mumbai, 22 May 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAABM6831
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020.

The preparation of financial statements of 1DB] Asset Management Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial
Statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 22 May 2020.

The assets under management through various schemes managed by IDBI Asset
Management Limited are not reflected in its Balance Sheet, since these assets do not form
part of the IDBI Asset Management Limited. Therefore, [ do not look into operation of these
schemes including decision making regarding acquisition, management and disposal of the
assets managed by the IDBI Asset Management Limited and express no opinion on the
soundness of the investments.

I, on behall of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of 1DBl Asset Management Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplemeniary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors
and ts limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’
report under section 143(6)(h) of the Act,

For and on the behatf of the
Comptrolier and Auditor General of India

i @kafﬁw@ *

(P. V. Hart Krishna)
Prineipal Director of Audit {Shipping), Munibai

Place : Mumbai
Date : 74.08.2020.



IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(CIN: U65100MHZ010PLC199319)

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March

Amount in Rupees

N Note 2020 2019
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholdor's Funds
Share capital 1 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
Reserves and surplus 2 {91,15,20,385} (91,90,54,052)
1,08,84,79,615 1,08,09,45,948
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provisions 3 43,92,023 30,88,050
43,92,023 30,868,050
Current Habilities
Trade payables 4 . 35,%6,539
Gther current Habititles 5 4,43,15,970 8,20,05,600
Shorl-term provisions 6 43,22,031 47,94,154
4,86,68,001 9,03,96,293
Total 1,14,15,39,639 1,17,44,30,29%
Assets
Hon-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 1,31,66,544 52,30,257
Intangible assets & 28,50,867 24,726,223
1,60,17 411 76,56,480
Non-current investments 9 50,95,79,967 39,11,75,174
Deferred tax Assel {(Net) 10 3,73,93,745 14,73,55,469
Long-term loans and advances 14 17,27,20,126 20,27,23,092
71,96,93,838 66,12,53,735
Current assets
Current investmeants 12 37,76,65,853 45,61,21,882
Trade receivables 13 51,95,829 ,00,04,373
Cash and Bank Balances 14 58,36,776 ¢,56,100
Short-term loans and advances i5 1,26,51,186 2,42,24,259
Other current assets H 44,78,746 1,45,13,462
40,58,28,390 50,5%5,20,076
Total 1,14,15,39,639 1,17,44,30,291
Significant Accounting Peilicies and Motes forming part of the 24 0. 25
financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
Foc HGE &Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board
‘ SCCLRLEIS
srafion Number 101185100035 Y )
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Chairman
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IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(CIN: U65{00MH2010PLCTS9319)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March

Amount in Rupees

Note 2020 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 17 29,90,68,568 59,76,66,687
Other income 18 6,17,77,304 5,07,52,036
Total 36,08,45,8772 64,84,18,723
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 14,66,29,568 15,96,32,915
Scheme and Distribution Expenses 20 4,46,10,548 28,50,23,507
Finance cost 21 85,68,766 20,80,896
QOther expenses 22 10,68,08,632 11,21,56,145
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 68,8%,389 52,81,989
Total 31,55,02,903 57,41,75,453
Profit before exceptional item and taxation 4,53,42,969 7,42,43,270
Exceptional items (Refer Note 25.4) 8,25,00,000 2,15,11,894
Profit before tax 12,78,42,969 9,57,55,164
Provision for taxation
- Current Tax - current year 1,02,13,068 94,10,085
~carlier vear 1,27,83,993 -

- Deferred Tax (10,99,61,724) (12,97,52,393)
- MAT credit » earlier years {1,26,49,483) -
Net Profit/ (Loss} affer tax 75,33,667 (4,34,07,314)
Farning / {Loss} per equity share (face value of Rs, 10 each)

(1} Basic 0.04 {0.22)

{2) Diluted 0.04 {0.22)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of 94 & 25

the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

BIGE ECo, LLP
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Date: 22 May 2020
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IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

{CIN: UGS 10CMH2010PLC159319)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March

Amount in Rupeoes

2020 2019
{A) iCash Fiow from Gperating Activitles :
Profit for the year 12,78,42,969 9.47,55,164
Add: Adjustments .
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 1,52,584 62,974
Depreciation and amortisation 68,8%,289 52,81,989
Interest on income Tax refund/ Bank FD/ Bonds (3,19,26,796) {2,50,40,434)
Dividend Income (12,25,185) (5,00,977)
Other Income (22,39,583) {36,42,520)
Provision for dimunition in value of investments 4,43,707 -
el giin on sale of investments {2,63,85,740) (2,15,60,105)
Operating Loss befare Working Capital changes 7,35,47 345 5,03,48,091.
{incraase)/ Decrease Trade receivables 18,08,545% 34,84,209
{Increase)! Decrease Short-term loans and agvances 1,15,73,074 12,57,95,430
{increase}/ Decrease Long-term toans and advances 33,070,720 38,02,539
{Increase}/ Decrease In Other current assets 1,00,34,716 {1,15,61,360)
Increase/ (Decreasé) Long-term provisions 13,03,973 8,01,719
Increase/ {Decrease)Vrade payabies (35,96,539) (6,34,50,937}
Increase/ Decreasa) Other current Liabilities (3,76,59,630) 1,46,00,388
Inerease/ {Decrease) Other none-current liabilities - {2,85,820)
ncrease/ (Decrease) Shorl-term provisions (4,72,122) 7,24,50%
Net change in working capltal {1,07,00,266) 7,39,10,672
Interest on Income Tax refund/ Bank FD 67,10,770 87,80,434
Direct taxes pald/refund {net) 7,52,45,821 (19,57,907)
Net Cash from/ (used in) Operating activitiss (A) 9,48,03,670 13,10,81,7%0
(B} jCash Flow from Investing activities
Purchrse of Property, Plant and Cquipment including Capital work in progress (1,64,42,498) (47,50,898)
(ncrease) /Decrease in investment (net) (12,03,92,471} {17,73,93,380}
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 21,453 21,10,951
Het gain on sate of investments 2,63,85,740 2,15,08,705
Other Incomie 22,39,%83 36,42,520
Dividend Income 172,25,18% 5,00,977
interest income 1,73,20,016 1,02, 60,000
Het Cash from / {(used in} Investing Activities (B3) (8,96,22,994) (13,80,61,725)
{C} 1Cash Flow from Financial activittes
Net Cash from/ (used in) In Financial Activities (C} -
Net increase in Gash & Cash Equivalents for the year (A+B+C) 51,80,676 (69,80,435)
| Cash & Cash Equivalents at the begining of the yeur 6,146,100 76,36,13%5
 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 58,36,776 6,56,100

AS Per olr altached t'GpOt'l of even date
Une WGE &Ca. LLP
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Hate 1: Shara Capltal

1DBEASSET MANAGEMENT LIRITED

(it V6ST00MHI0T0PLC1 99319
ROTES FORMING PART OF THE DALAHCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH

Awpgunt {n fupeos

. 2020 2019
Authorised
250,000,000 Cquity Shares of Rs. 19 oach(250,000, 600 Equity shares of Rs.10 cach) 2,40,00,00,000 2,50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribod and Pald up
00,000,000 Equily Shares of its, 10 ench{200,090,000 Loty sharos of Its, 10 each) #,010,00,00,600 2,00,00,00,000
‘Total - 2,00,00,90,000 2,00,00,00 000
a} Reconclifation of numbay of shares aulstending

Hos.nf Sharos

| - 3570 1019
Shares cutstunding st the beginning of Lhe year 20,00,00,000 20,00.00,000

Shares Issied during the year . .

Shires outstanding at 1he end of the yoar 10,00,00,000 20,00,00,000

b} Terms/ rights zitached to ogulty sharos

“The Company has only one ciass of equfty shares having & par value of s, 14 each. Cach koldor of oquity shares Is vatitled 1o one
The flnad dividend proposed by the Roard of Pirectars i subfect to Lhe approval of sharaholders in the

Company declares and pays dividond iy India Rupeos,
onstang Annual General Meating.

I the event of tiquidatlon of the company, he

vole pei share. The

holders of equity shares will be ontitled to recefve remalning assots of the LCompany after distrjbution of all

preferential amounts, The Distelbution wotld be in proportion ta the murler of aqlty shares hotd by the sharcholders.

<) Details of Shargholdings

Name of Slinreholder 2020 2019
Ho. of Sharos % of Holding o, of Shares hald % of Holdlng
held
1081 tiunk Liraited ( Holding Campany) and its Hominoes 13,33,40,000 66.67 $3,33,40,000 66.67
DB Capital Markets and Sectiritios Limited £,66,60,000 33.33 6,00, 60,000 34,32
Total 2{3,08,00 900 100,00 20,00,00,000 100,00

d) The Company has not Issued any bonus shares, or sharos for consideration othar than cash or

Marcii, 2020

Hote % Reserves and sirplus

hought brck any shares durdng flve years preceeding 31

Amount In Rupoos

2029 04¢
Sarptus/ (Doficit)
Gpenlng balance {9%,90,54,052 (67,56,46,718)
Profit/(Luss) for the cute vei 15,313,067 o 434,07, 314)
o Batince - (01,1520, 385)] 101,90, 54,007
Hote 30 Long-Lerin provisfans
Ameunt n fupees
. 20720 2079
Proviston for employee Bonefits
Gratuity B, 77409 .
Leave Fncashmant 35,14, 94 30,008,050
Total 43.92,023 36,68,060
Hote 4 Trade Payalies
e Amannide.Riwess
2620 019
o Vo {Refer Wala 2. 11) T -
- Wicre and small enverprlses - .
= Qther Lhas micro and small enterprises - 35,894,539
"""" Total - 39,496,530
Hote §: Othor Current Liabilities
Aol in Rupews
2000 Wi
Caloly, incentives and reimbursomants payable 1,57,535,171 2,26,35,018
#Frovident and viher funds payable 4,090,720 9,89.400
Discount on Investment unadfusted . 7,85,820
Statutory dues paysble
STDS prayable 75,99,000 22,59,753
«Goods and Seivicos Tax Payable 15,20,513 o, 98,731
-Prefessional Ty Payable 17,264 21,621
Oiher payablas Refor Hote 24,11}
+ Hicre and small enterprises - -
- Other Whan micro and smadl enterprises 2,16,05,236 4,59,15,257
Total 4,43,4%5 970 4,20,05,000
Hede &2 Short-term Provisions
Amount in Ru;mr{:}th
2020 i
Trovrein [61 eaployee bonelints T
- Gratity 34,02, 6 38,001,940
Leave encashinent 999,635 '.‘,‘)2,1‘{\.1_
i Fotal 4%.32,001 47,94, 154
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Hote 9: ton Current Investmants

Amotint in Rupens

[ﬁ‘un-mrranl investmonts Faco Value 020 019
QlyAnltsiRo. Amount QtyrUnis/Na, Amount
I;;v;:ma-l:—!r\_iicllsily Sharos
Quatad
Hetsing and Urban Dovelopment Corporatlon Limitod 10 7.672 4,60,320 F.672 1.40,120
Cochin Shlpyard Limitod 10 824 3,456,832 H2h R 3,596,617
8,17,151 TB,17,757 ]
Less: Provisfon for dimunition invaluo of fnvestmonts 4,43,107 .
1,743,445 8,17,152
Unquotod
ME Gtlity indla Frivate Limfted H 5,00,000 5,00,000 3,00,000 §,00,000
Pl vkl
5,00,000 5,80,000
lnvestiment fa Bonds - Quoted
B804 SEEATT Series i Bonds 10,080,500 100 9,9%,44,300
6.99% HIMFC Serles W-009 Dands 10,090,000 100 10.01,03,000 . .
Punfis Hational Bask - Bonds 14,00,000 100 £0,06,00,000 100 10,00,00,500
Poweer Fiance Corporation Limited « Bons - . 100 14,00,00,000
"G, 00,40, 500 | 70,00,00,600
investment in Mutual Funds- Quoted
WOBE Liquibd Fondt - Direct Plan - Growth 1000 3a27 50,080,000 4,027 62,00,000
HHM Oyainic Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Hil 4,07,282 50,00,000 4,07,282 50,00,000
I Biversified Bquity Fund - Direct Man  Growlh i0 3,485,856 $0,60,00¢ 3,15,856 §0,00,000
1001 Gold Fund FOF-Direet Plan 10 5,%1,835 50,0¢,000 5,491,835 50,00, 000
3Bl Gitt Fund « Direct Man -Growth 10 4,15,812 50,00,000 4,145,837 50,00,000
1B India Top 100 Bauity Fund - Birect Flan « Growlh W 2,658,752 §0,00,000 2,65,252 $0,00,000
1201 svideap Fund - Birect Mlan - Growith {0 4,97,512 $0,00,000 497,512 50, 60,000
081 Equity Savings Fund « Direct Plan -Growll 10 3,62,337 50,00,000 3,62,337 50,00,00¢
IDBI Kifty index Fund - Direct Plan - Grawth 10 3,027,418 SG,00,000 3,07,416 50,000,600
00E Hifty hunior lndex Fand « Diveet Flan - Growtl 10 3,37,881 50,00,000 3,37,881 $0,00,000
1381 Credit Risk Fund- Dicect Plan « Growth 10 4,58,552 50,00,000 4,588,552 50,00,000
1361 Hybyid Equity Fund - Direct Plan - Growtit ¢ 4,958,659 50,00,000 4,598,659 a0,00,000
181 Smatt Cap Fund - Disect Plan - Growth 10 4,%9%,002 50,00,000 4,9%,002 $9,00, 600
HAF Shert Term Bond Fund -+ Direct Plan - Growll 10 3,548,805 50,600,000 LQB.BOB 50,00,000
0t Equity Advantage Fund - Birect Blan « Growlh 10 4,506,674 $0,00,000 2,56,674 50,00,000
1000 Hktris Shart anm Fund - Divect Man - Growlh 1000 342 50,060,000 3,442 50,00,000
IDBE Golel Funt ETF 100 2,000 50,%8,0%% 2,000 50,58,022
HIBI Foeysed 10 Equity Fund - Dlrect Flan « Growll j§1] 4,99,%01 50,00,000 4,599,501 59,060,600
108! Banjtiay & Financdal Services Fund « Direct fan -Growth 19 4,99,002 $0,00,000 4,9%,002 $0,00,000
IR Long Torm Vatue Fund - Direct Plan « Growtly 10 4,999,007 40,00,000 4,929,002 50,00,000
I Qividend Yiotd Fupd « Dlrect #lan - Growth 10 4,90,504 50,006,000 4,90, 504 50,00,000
1DBE Heattheare Fund « Direct #lan « Graveth 168 3,058,921 36,00, 000 3,588,921 36,060,000
Teheberoiss Miprat Bond xchange Traded Fund 1,000 1,00,000 10,00,00,060 [
20,06,58,002 0,94,350,022
A:;\;wo,ulc ameunt of quoted Investments 50,95,79,947 31,11,75,1 ?4._‘
ket vithie FHAY of quoled investnients 03,71.7).066 34,18,060,633
Apgrogale provision imsde for diminution i value of lvestments 413,707 :




Note 10" beferied Tax Assol/ (Liabilitly)

| 30 Y]
Deferred Tax Assot
Gratity 11,906,753 10,57,713
Leave Eacashment 12,32,497 11,35,118
Accumutatod Losses 3,43,27,843 14,46,64,000
Sepreciation 4,481,052 4,98,630
Beferied Tak Assot at (the year ond 3,73,93,745 14,73,55,460
Dolerred Tax Liability
Deforrpd Tax Llabllity at the year ond .
ng’arred Tax Asset / (Liabilivy) Hat 3,73,9%,745 14,73,5%,4069
Hote 11: Long-term {oans and advancos
Arnount {n Rupees
2020 019
Capitsl Advances 10,02,140 .
Batance wilk government authoritias
“Direct Tax 14,78,13,271 19,54,63, 304
“ndirect Taxe Vat paid under dispute 15,00,000 15,00,00(
Advance MAT credit Entitlement 9%,32,%06
I'repaid expanse 14,92,973 48,060,693
Deposits 9,459,094 9,459,000
“Total 17,27,20,126 20,17,23,092
Hole 12 Current Investments
Current investments Face Value 2070 2049
Qtyrinits/Ha, Amount Qly/Unitsitie. Amount
avestment in 1081 Mutuzd Fund - Quoted {valuad at {ower of cost or
S0 Liquid Fund - Direct Flan « Growtly 1000 1,40,647 79,86,19,878 1,605,938 32,88,70,737
10BE Shert Term Bond Fund-lirect Plan-Growth 16 4%,01,039 7,90,45,975 41,010,038 1,90,45,97%
B GIL Fund - Direct Man - Growih 10 - - 31,28,2140 4,1i2,0%,170
Aggregate amount of quoted investisonts 37,746,65,853 45,61,21,882
Market value JHAY 6f quoted lnvestmonts 38,G3,74,158 46,15,88,546
Augregale provision made for diminition {s value of {nvestmonts - -
Nole 13: Trade rocelvabtes
Aot In Rupees
) 028 w19
bnsecured, considered good
Trade receivables outstanding for o porfud dess than six ionths 51,95,829 1,00,04,373
covivablos oulstanding for a period uxceeding six monthy :
Towl i LB Y b0 67
Hote 140 Cash and Bank Balances
Amgiant m flupees
N 2070 2019
Caslh anck gash gquivatonts
- Balances wath banks in cirrent accounts 58.13. 429 654,014
- Cash nn hine) 23,347 %,084
Total 98,36,776 6,446,100
tete 13: Short-term foans and advances
Amoung in Rupeoy
"""" 2020 2019
Hipzeared, cansiderad goad)
{repostis 4,82, 306 4,92,000
Staff Advances 3,532,842 .
Advance Lo vendors 2,048,523 4,909,475
Advance given Lo Schemes - 11,57,38,106
Less: Frovisien for doubiful recelvable . 11,57, 38,106
Balance with govermuent authorliles . B
<Inektrect Tax 55,10,587 11,306,743
Prepatd expense 61,160,958 7,20,96,541
Totat 1,%6,51,106 2,42,24, 259
Hote 161 Qther curront assets
Amount in Rupees
s 1020 2019
nterest accrued bd not due on Sonds 40,411,546 9,44,6¢%7
Quer Recelvable - Related partles 4,067,200 1,35,68, 580
N Totat AATE, 746 [EIRERIY)




IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

(CIN: U65100MH2010PLC1993149)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

Note 17: Revenue from operations

Amount in Rupees

2020 2019
Management Fees {Gross) 35,29,00,910 70,52,46,691
Less @ Goods and Service Tax 5,38,32,342 10,75,80,004
Management Fees (Net) 29,90,68,568 59,76,66,687
Note 18! Other income
Amount in Rupees
2020 2019
interest Income
- Bonds/Deposits 1,73,87,417 1,64,18,904
= Income tax refund 1,45,38,379 86,21,530
Dividend income 12,25,185 5,00,977
Net gain/loss on sale of investments 2,63,85,740 2,15,68,105
Other non-operating income 3,27,362 3,79,828
Secretarial and Accounts Services Fees 19,12,221 32,62,692
' Total 6,17,77,304 5,07,52,036
Note 19: Employee benefits expense
Amount in Rupees
2020 2019
Salary, incentives and retmbursements 12,81,48,266 14,02,68,821
Contributions to provident and other funds 89,72,413 96,24,855
Staff welfare expenses 80,18,928 85,35,753
Staff Training Expenses 89,041 1,58,869
Leave Encashment 14,00,920 10,44,617
Total 14,66,29,568 | 15,96,32,916

Note 20: Scheme and Distribution Expenses

Amount in Rupees

2020 2019

Scheme Expenses
Upfrant Brokerage 1,40,94,98% 6,96,40,540
Annualised / Trail Brokerage 33,52,723 12,43,62,192
Scheme Administrative expenses 42,37,688 9,52,041
Register and Transfer agent and other expenses - 2,18,11,49%
Custodian Fees " 33,758,744
Internal and Concurrent Audit Fees 14,011,756 13,35,000
Other scheme Related expenses 11,30,270 2,48,27 317

Total (a) 2,42,17,426 24,63,04,329




{cont.)

Other Sales and Distribution Expenses
Advertisement Expenses 12,27,640 19,585,555
Printing Material 8,04,274 56,19,002
Courier and Postage 9,77,651 27,40,975
Conference and Seminars 21,23,149 1,40,09,237
Other Sales and Distribution Costs 4,26,060 34,67,608
Entertainment Expenses 15,16,697 41,0%,386
Out Bound Sales Expenses 1,33,17,651 1,68,21,415
Total (b} 2,03,93,4122 4,87,19,178
Total (a)+({b) 4,46,10,548 29,50,23,507
Note 21- Finance cost
Amount in Rupees
2020 2019
Interest expense-indirect taxes 66,55,833 -
- Others 3,21,841 4,24,528
181, Charges/Bank Charges 15,91,092 16,56,369
Total 85,68,766 20,80,896
Note 227: Other expenses
Amount in Rupees
2020 2019
Office Rent 3,43,05,742 3,42,28,684
House-keeping, Maintenance and Qthers 96,068,547 87,28,314
Electiricity and Water %4,46,326 52,400,427
Telephone expenses 25,95,571 25,81,692
T and Networking Exponses 1,87,08,938 1,76,74,104
Professionat and Consultancy Fees 90,%8,080 68,73,110
Printing and Staticnery 12,44,898 22,18,847
Local Convevance 42,777,968 51,221,012
Rates and Taxes 15,24,043 2,90,236
Travel and Halting Expenses 35,29,544 94,93,485
Subscriptions 1,18,86,896 1,00,49,966
sMembership and Subscriptions to AMFI/SEB 21,98,192 30,39,720
rector Sitting Fees 19,50,000 12,20,000
Repairs and Maintenance 5,60,150 36,60,645
Provision for dimunition in value of non current investments 4,43,707 -
Loss on Sate of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,52,584 62,974
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 25.12) 9,006,000 8,006,000
Miscellaneous expenses 8,57,046 8,72,926
Total 10,88,08,632 11,21,56,145
Note 23: Depreciation and amortization expense
Amount in Rupees
2020 2019
Property, Plant and Equipment 60,43,495 42,812,786
Imtangible assets §,41,894 9,99,203
Total 68,85,38Y 52,681,989
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1108 Asset Management Limited

{CIN: U5 TOOMH2CTOPLETS9319)
Significant accounting pelicies and other netos
Background
DB Asset Management Company Limited {“the Company”) was incerporated on 25 Jan 2010 as a Public limited company. The principal activity of the Company is to
act as an investment manager and advisor 0 IDBi Mutual Fund (“the Fund”). The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of fndia (SEB!) under SEBI
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, :

Significant Accounting Pelicias

Basls of preparation of financlal statements

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basts in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in india {Indian GAAP) and comply with fn
ali material respect with the Accounting Standards specified under seetion 133 of the Compantes Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost cenvention, The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial stateinent are consistent with

those of previous year,

Uso of cstimatas

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accotnting principles {"GAAP") fn india which requires management to make
estinates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, Habilitles, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent Liabilitios on the date of the
financial statements, The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanylng financlal statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances &5 of (he date of the financial staternents. Actual results may differ frem the estimates used in preparing the accompanying finangiad statements.

Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods,

Current-Non Current Classification

All assets and Habilities are classified into current and non-current

Assels

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it fs expected to be realized {n, or {s intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal aperating cycle;

iL 15 held primarily for Lhe purpose of being traded;

it is expected Lo be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

it is cash or cash equivalent unless 1 is restricted from being exchanged or used o seltie a lability for at deast 12 months afler the reporting date,
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets,

All other assets are classified as non-current,

Liabilities

A liability Is classified as current when {t satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is eapecled to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iU is due Lo be setled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

Fhe company does not have an unconditional right 1o defer selilement of the Wabiltty for at least 12 manths after the reporting date. Terms of a tiabitity that could,
al the option of the counterparty, resull in its seitiement by (e issue of equily inslruments de not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current porticn of non-current Tinanclal labillties,

All ethor Gabilities ave classified as non-current,

Revenue Recognition

Invostment Management foos;
lavestiment Management fees are recognized nel-off service tax/GST on an accrual basis as a percentage of the average daily net assets of the schemes of DBl Mutual
funds, such thal iL does nel exceed Lhe rales prosoribed by the Secorities and Exchange Board of india ('SEBF’} (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 (the ‘Regidations'’ as

amended,

Oiher incone:

Interest income is accounted for on perfod propertion basis. Interest on interest bearing securities {s accrued on the coupon rate. On purchase of such investments,
interest paid for the peried from the last interest due <ate up to the date of purchase is not treated as a cost of purchase but is treated as interest recoverable,
Sipnitarly, interest received at the thme of sale for the pariod from the last interest due date up Lo the date of sale Is not treated as part of sale value but i treated

as intorest recoverad. In case of premium /dlscount on secuiitles the same is being amortised over the teaure

The prefit/loss on the sale of investments is recoenized in the slatement of Profit and Loss on the trade date using the FIFOG method for arriving at purchase cost,

Dividend Income is recognized when the right te receive dividend is established.
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Property, Plant and Equlpments and Intangiblas

Preperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acqulsition / installation and less accumulated depreciation and fmpairmont loss, i any. Cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing costs If capitalisation criterla are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset 4o its working condition for the intended use, Subseguent
expenditure Incurred on assets pul to use fs capitalized only when It increases the fulure benefit/functioning capabllily fram/of such assets. All expenses on existing
assels, including repalrs and maintenance and ¢ost of replacement of parts are charged as revenve in the perfod in which they are incurred

Intangible assets are rocegnised in the yeur it 45 put to use at cost. Intangibie assels are carried at cost less accumidated amortization and Impaiement loss, if any.

Depreciation/ amortization on property, plant and squfpment and Intangibles
Deprectation is provided on Stratght Line Method (SLM) as prescribed in Sehedule Hf Lo the Compandes Act, 2013, The rates of depreciation of assets have been arfived
L after considering the useful Life of the asset as per schedule 1 of the Companies Act 2013, if the management's estimate of 1he useful iife of a progerty, plant and
equipments, at the time of acquisition of the assel or of the rematning uselul life on a subsequent review is shorter, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based
on management's estimates of the uselul life/remaining useful life, Pursuant to this policy, depreclation has been provided using the following rates!

Class of Property, Plant and Equipments Rate of Dapreciation (%)

SLM basis
Furniture and Fixturss 9.50
Office Equipment 19,00
IT Hardware 33.33
Consumer durables wilth Emploveas 33,33

Comprtier soltware individually costing more than Bs 2,50,000 is capltatized and deprecialed over a period of 5 years, Computer software indivicually costing (ess
thans Rs, 2,530,000 is fully depreciated fn the year of purchase/acquisition,

The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the date the asset is put to use and for any asset sold until the date of sale,

Property, plant and equipments, other than software, individually costing Ks 5,000 or {ess are fully depreciaied in the year of purchase / acquisition,

Impairment of assots:

The Company asse.ses at each Balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Campany
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, ¥ such recoverable amount of the assel is less than s carrying amount, the carrying amount fs reduced to s
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an Impairment foss and is recognized in the profit and loss account, If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication Lthal a previousty assessed impalrment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject Lo a maximum of depreciable Mstorical cost. After Impaiement, depreciation is provided on the rovised carrying ameunt of the asset over its remaining yseful

life.

investhents
tnvastments which are readily realizabte and are intended (o be held for not more than one year from the date, on which such fivestments are made, are classifted

as current investments, All other investments are classified as long tenm ivestments, Current investments are carried sl cost or (adr valug, whichever is lower, Long-
term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for dinvnution is made 10 recognize a decling, other than temparary, in the value of the fnvestments, such

reduction being determined and made for each fnvestment individually.

Einplovee benefits

Gratuity:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is funded through & Gratuity Fund administered and managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
Company accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based on the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method carried out as al the end of oach
financial year,

Provident fund;

The Company contributes to & recognized provident fund, The centribudions are accounted for on an acorual basis and are recogrized as an expense in the
statement of profitand loss,

Short term employes banefiis:

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the stavement of profit and (oss of the year in which the services are renderad,

Compensated absences:
The Company provides for Privilege Leave Encastinenl subject Lo certain rules, The emplovees ate entitied 1o accumutate teave subject o certain imits for future

encashment as well as avallment. The tiability is provided based on the number of days of unitilized leave at each batance sheet date on the basis of an independent
actuarial valuation carried out as at the end of each financlal year,

Cperating Leases
Lease of assets under which all the risk and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease pavments/ revenue

wnder operating leases are recogaized as expense/ Income on acerval basis o accordance with the terms of respective lease agreements,

rarnings per share
Basic earmihgs per share #s computed and disclosed using the weighted average nurmber of equity shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share is

computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the resulls
wandd be anti-dilutive,




212

213

2.13

2,15

Taxation
Income tax expense conprises currest tax (i.e. amount of tax for the pericd determined i accordance with the income-tax law), deferred tax charge or credit
(reflecting the tax effects of timing differences hetween accounting income and taxable Income for the perlod).

Current taxes .
Provision for current income-tax Is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Indian inceme-Lax Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax Ualsility after
taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

Deferred taxes .

Deferred tax assets and liabltitles are recopnized for the future tax consequences attributable to viming differences that result between the profits offered for
Income taxes wd the profits as per the financiat statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arg measured wsing the Lax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enaclod by the bafance sheet date, The effoct of a change In tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the period that
inctudes the enactment date, Deferred tax assets are recognized enly 1o the extent there is reasunable certainty that the assets can be realized $n the future,
However, where there is unabsorbed deprectation or carrled forward loss undier taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtuat certainty of
realization of such assels, Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the appropriateness of their respective carrylng vatues at each balance sheet date,

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an
asset onhly to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT
Creditis allowed Lo be carrled forward, In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT Credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Aceounting for
Credit Avaitable in respect of Minfmum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset {5 created by way of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss
and shawin as “WMAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the "MAT Credit Entitiement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the assel to the extent

the company does not have convineing evidence that, it will pay nornial tax during the sufficient period.

Borrowing cos{
Borrowing costs atribulable Lo the acqulsition or constraction of qualifying assets tili the time such assets are ready for inte
of the assets. All other borrowling costs are expensed in the period they eccur,

nded use are capitalised as part of cost

Provisions and Contingencies
The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as & resutt of a past event that probably regulres an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the ebifgation. A disclosure for a comtingent lability is made when there is a possible obligation or a presens obligation that may, but

probably will not, require an outfiow of rosources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the ttketihobd of outflow of
rOSOLUCEs IS raimote, no provision or disclosure is made,
Provisions are nat discountad Lo thelr present vatue and are determined based on the best estimate required 1o seitle the obligation a1 the Balance Sheel date,

fravistons are reviewed al each batance sheet and adjusted Lo refleci the current best esthmate. If it is no tonger probable that the outflow of resources would be

required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are nol recognized M the financial statements, However, conlingenl assels are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic

benefit will arfse, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurred.

Cash Flow Statement;

Cash Flows are reported using indirect method whereby net profits befare tax
accruals of past or future operaling cash receipts or payments and ftem of ncom
aperating, investing and financing activities of the campany are segregated,

is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or
¢ or expenses assoctated with investing or financing cash flovs. The cash flows from

Cash and Cash equivalents:
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise cash and current account balunces with Banks, The Company cangiders all highly Liquid fnvestiments with a remaining maturity at

the dale of purchase of thiree months or less and that are réadily convertiible Lo known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Transactions {n forelgn currency:
Foreign currency transactlons are recorded at the rates of exchange prevalling on the date of the transactions, Fxch

exchange transactions seltled during the year are recopnized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

hange difference, if any, arising out of the forelgn

Brolerage and Mew Fund Offer expenses:
Brokerage: Upfront Brokerage paid in case of open ended Equity Linked Tax Saving schemes are to be amortized over the period of 36 months and in case of any

uther epen ended scheme , Gver the claw back perlod. In case of closed ended schemes upfront hrckerage Lo be amortized over the tenure of the scheme,

News Fund Offer {(NFO): Launch expenses relating (o New Fund Offer are 1o be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred and

for close ended scheme It is to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the scheme,

Scheme related axpenses:

Al recurring expenses of the schemes of the IDBI Muiual Fund including Lhe amounts in excess of the Umits presciibed by the Securities
(Mutual Fund} Reguiations Act 1996, as amended, o fn excoss of limils and as given i the Scheme Idormation Document that are
Company as per the said regulalions, are charged to the Slatement of Profit and Loss as Seheme related expenses. (Refer Note 25.13)

andl Exchange Board of India
required to be borne by the




Other Notes to Accounts

25,1 Employee benefits:
I accordance with the Accounting Standard -15 (Employes Benefits) prescribed fn the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2006, the Company has classified the

2)

various benefits provided to the employer as under:

Defined Contribution Plan
Provideat Fund

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Lass, which are included under Contiibution te Provident

andd Other Funds:

Amount in Rupaes

2020

019

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund

59,92,475

60,51,969

Defined Benefit Plan
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Funded Scheme)

In aceordance with Payiment of Gratulty Act, 1972, the Comnpany provides for gratuily, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees, The plan provides a

tump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment L

the Company.

The gratuity benefit is provided through a Gratuity Fund administratod and managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of nd

graluity fund and provision is made on the basts of actuarial valuation.

Reconcilfation of opeaing and closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligation forgratuity benefils 1s given below:

ased on the respective empleyee’s salary and the years of employment with

ia. The annual contributions 1o the

Amount In Rupees

2020 2019
Present value of funded Lenafit obligations as at 1 April 98,60, %69 84,11,172
Service cosl 18,04,918] 11,08,776
interest cost 6,646,602 6,03,922
Past Service Cosl - Vested Benefit incurred During the year 0 0
Benefit Pald from the Fund (17,39,008) (22,57,427)
Actuarial (Gatns)/ Losses on obligation-due to change in Demographic Assumption 0 3,47,615
Actuarial {Gains)/ Losses on obfigation-due to change In Fivancial Asstenptions 5,066,894 §,06,402
Actuarial {gain}/ loss on abligalions-due to experience 71,004 8,40,509
Prasent value of funded benefit obligations as at 31 March 1,1%,31,37% 98,60,969

Amount In Rupees

#Reconciliation of openiag and clasing Balance of Fair Value of Pian Assets: 2020 2019
Fair vatue of plan agsets as at beginning of the year 60,586,989 §4,93,340
Expected return on plan assets 4,09,568 3,074,427
Actuarial gain/ {lossi-due 1o experience {15,754) {12,012)
Employer contribution 22,37,359 24,40,666
Benefils paid (17,39,008) (22,574,477}
Fair valug of plan asse{s at (he vear end 69,5%, 174 60,58,95%

. Amount in Rupees

Reconcilfation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations: 2020 2019
Fresent Yalue of Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year (1,12,31,379) {98,60,969)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of year 69,51,174 60,58,909
Ned { Liability) 7 Assel vecognized in the Balance Sheet (42,80,205) (38,01,980))
Arnuunt in Rupees

Expense recopnized during the year; 2020 2019
Current Service Cost 18,04,918 11,08,776
Itorest Cost 6,66,602 6,03,922
Expected rewm on plan assets (4,09,568) (3,94,422)
Actuarial {gain) / loss ‘ 6,563,642 20,006,538

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefl Recognized During the vear . -

Expenses recognized in Profit and Loss ASC 27,15,584 33,24,814
Amount in fupees

Experience Adjustments: 2020 2019
{Gains) 7 Losses on Plan Obligations 71,004 8,40,505
Gains / (Losses) on Plan Assets (15,754} 12,012}
Estimated Contribution for next year 34,02,396 44,7%,552
Actuarial assumptions used are;- 2020 2019 i
Discount rale 5,458 6,76%
Sadery escalation rale - 12.00% 12.00%
Attrition rate 22.00% 22.00%
5.45% 6.76%

Eapectad return on plan assets
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Accumuiated Componsated Absoncos:

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at balance sheet date using projected unit credit methad, This method takes into account the
pattern of avaiiment and quantifying salary on the date of avallment of leave. Present value of obligation for accumulated compensased absences as determined by

the Actuary is given below:

Amount in Rupees

2020 2019
Present value of obligation as at end of Lhe year Aa4,33,849 40,806,223
Falr value of plan agsets . .
Actuarial assumption used . -
Discount rate 5,45% 6.76%
Salary escalation rate 12,00% 12,00%
Cost recognized during the year 14,00,920 10,44,617

Segment Reporting:

The campany is in the business of providing Investment management service ta the mutual fund, and the enlire revenue from operations is from the above service

rendered in India, Hence the company has ne other reportable bosiness or geographical sepment,

Related party disclosures:
As required under Accounting Standard - 16 the folloviing are details of retated parties and transactions with them

List of related parties and relationships :

individuals having control with relatives & associates

Yldp Kumar Mandal
Managing Drector and

Chief Executive Officer

Raj Kishore Singh
J ¥ Managing Director and

Chief Executive Officer

Koy Managament Personnal

Key Management Personnel

Managing Director and

Dilip Kumar Mandal *
Chief Executive Glficer

Managing Director and

Raj Kishore Singh**
Chief Executive Officer

Amil Bhavsar Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

AJL Joshi

rotirad w.e.d 30 Novernmber 2019
 Joined as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer w.a.f, 30 December 2019

Entities ewned ar significantly influenced by Directors and/ef key management personnat or thedr relative and with whom Company
hras entered into transactions durlng the period under review

Ultimate Holding

Life Insurance Corporation of India
Company

1033t Bank Limited Hotding Company

IDBI Capital Markets and Services Limited Assaclate Company

DB I Lech Cimited Fellow subsidiary

10BI MF Trustee Company Limited Fetlow subsidimy

Other refated parties with whom Company has entored into transactions during the period under review

Yes Bank Cimited * j0ther Related Party

* ceased Lo be weef 10 June 2019

Entities owned or significantly influenced by Directors andfor key management personnel or thelr refative and with whom Company
has not entered inko transactions during the perlod under review

D81 Federai Lile Insurance Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited Fellow Subsidinry
Other related partles with whom Comnpany has not entared into transactfons during tho yoar under roview

Micro Units Development and Refinance Agency Limited NIL

1FC) Factors Limted NIL

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) Nl

Siotech Consertivm {1) Limited il

torth £ast Development Finance Corporation Limited {NEDF() NIL

Pondichery Industrial Premotion Development and lavesiment Corporation {imited NI,

ICAMAd Registered Yatuers Organisation NIl

EXIA Bank Limited Il

Stress Assed Stabilisation Fusd N,
EnLreprenedrship Development nsititue of Indla KL

INMACS Finance Private Limited NIk
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Transaction with related parties

Amount in Rupees

1981 Bank Limited ; 2020 2019
Transuactions with IDBI Bank t.imited

Expenditure Incurred;

- Upfromt Drokerage 5,29,63,449
- Annualised / Trall Brolerage . 8,73,64,356
- Offica Rent 3,15,92,328 1,07,89,77¢
- Eleclrivity and Water 50,327,419 33,44,269
- House-keeping, Maintenance and Others etc 1,719,340 13,380
- Rates and Taxes . 73,790
- Salaries and incentives 40,60,108 88,28,711
- iDL Charges ) 13,28,599 9,156,522
« Scheme Related Expenses - 22,94,529
- Relmbursement of Sharing Expenses *
Interest on fixed deposlt 67,401 1,508,904
DBl Capital Market Services Limited : 2020 2019
Transactions with IDBI Capitai Market Services Limited

Expenditre tncurred:

- Upfront Brokerage 2,579
- Annuatised / Trail Brokerage . 1,063,103
+ Salarles 30,67,914 .
IDB Intech Limited: 2020 2019
Transactions with iDBI Intech Lirited

Expenditure Incurred

- IT & Communication services 43,449,000 84, 24,000
iDB! MFF Trustee Company Limited {Including the transaction with (DBl Mutual Fund) 2020 2019
Transactions with ID8I MF Trustee Company Limited

Income Recefved

- Secretarial and Accounts Services Fees 19,162,201 32,62,692
- Management Fees 29,90,68,567 59,76,06,687
Expenditure Incurred;

- Scheme Administartive expenses 42,37,688 9,52,041
- Other Advance given and received - 63,45,232
- Other schome Related axpenses 82,13,254
Yes Bank Limited : 2020 2019
Transactions with Yes Bank Limited

Expenditure Incurred:

- Upfront Brokerage 2,559

9,378

- Annualised / Trait Brokerage




Balances with related parties:

- Capital Contribution

IDBI Capital Market Services Limited

1,33,34,00,000

2020 2019
IDBI Bank Limited (Holding Company)
- Other payables 80,93,387 3,15,33,607
- Cash and Bank Balances 58,13,429 6,54,016

1,33,34,00,000

- Other payables 2,75,401 .

- Capital Contribution 66,66,00,000 66,66,00,000
IDBI in-tech Limited

- Other payables 6,26,175 -
DBl MF Trustee Company Limited

- Trade Receivable 51,95,828 1,00,04,373
- Other Receivable 4,67,200 1,26,16,545
- Other Payables 48,51,252 -

(C) Summary of transactions with related parties:
2020 2019
IT and Communication services 83,49,000 84,24,000
Upfront Brokerage - 5,29,88,587
Annualised / Trail Brokerage . 8,74,76,837
Office Rent 3,15,92,328 3,07,89,770
Electricity and Water 50,32,419 33,44,289
House-keeping, Maintenance and Others 1,19,340 13,380
Rates and Taxes - 73,790
Salary, incentives and reimbursements 79,28,042 88,28,711
IDL Charges 13,28,589 9,15,522
Scheme Related Expenses - 22,94,529
Interest on fixed deposit 67,401 1,58,904
Secretarial Fees 19,12,221 32,62,692
Management Fees 29,90,68,567 59,76,66,687
Scheme Administartive expenses 42,37,688 9,52,041
Other scheme Related expenses - 82,13,254
Other Advance given and received - 63,45,232
(D) Managerial Remuneration:

) . 2020 2019
Salary and Allowances paid to MD and CEO (Reimbursement) 34,71,084 59,60,711

Note: Related parties have been identified and certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors

25.4 Exceptional items

Some of the schemes of IDBI Mutual Fund have made investment in debt securities issued by Bilt Graphic and Paper Products Limited (BGPPL) which have not been
paid by BGPPL. In this regard IDBI AMC has advanced a sum of Rs. 217,500,000 considering long term and larger interests of the schemes, investors, industry practice
ompany received during the full and final
payment againt BGPPL of Rs 82,500,000 and balance outstanding of Rs 33,238,106 has already written off against provision created earlier.

and for upholding the image of the group. The Company had made provision of Rs 115,738,106 in the earlier year. The C
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25,12

Cpoerating lease

The Company has entered into operaling lease arrangements for certain assets.Following are the disclosure requirements as per the Accounting Standard - 19
"Leases”

The total lease payments recogrized in the Statement of Profiy and Loss Loveards the said leases amounts Lo Rs, 34,305, 742/-(PY Rs, 34,228,684/.)

The future tease payments i respectof non-cancellable lease of the above are as foliows:

2020 019
Mot Later than One year - 6,60,055
Later than one year bul not (ater Lhan five years .
£arnings per share!
In Accordance with Accounling Standard - 20, the computation of earnings per share is se\ oul below:

2020 N 2019
Net (Loss)/ Profit after tax atbributable to equity shareholdersia) 75,33,667 {4,34,07,314)
Cateulation of weighted average namber of equity shares(B) §
- No. of shares at the beginning of the period 24,00,00,000 20,00,00,800
- No. of shares issued during the perlod Nil. Ml
- Totat No. of shares outstanding at the period 70,00,00,600 20,00,00,000
- Nominal Value of the equity share - per share 10/- 10/
- Pasd up value of the equity share - Per share w0/- 104+
- Welghted average no. of shares al 10/ paid up per share equivalent 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Basic {loss)/ earnings per share of the face value of 10/~ for the period(A)/ (B)- 0.04 {0.22)

Taxes on hicome
Brovision for current Lax Is made as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961

In accordance with AS - 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income” fssued by the ICAl, deferred tax assets and Uabitity is recoghized for all tining differences, in
accordance with the said standard. However, deffered tax asset of Rs 110,336,157 created in earlior year on lax lossos has been written off during the year, in
absence of convincing evidence, that the futire taxable benefits associated with it witl flow to the Company. The Company has sUll unabserbed business {oss of
530,973,000/~ which is available for eight years from the year of incurrence,

Impairment of Assots:
Durtng the year, the Company has undertaken a review of all property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in line with the requirements of Accounling

Standard-28 on "Impalrment of Assets”, Based on such review, no provision for impairment is required to be recogrized for the year,

Contingent abilities are as under:
Far the AY 2015-16 the Income Tax Department vide its assessment order under section 143(3) dated 26-12-2017 disallowed certain expendituras thereby reducing

the loss and initiated penally proceedings under section 271{1Hc) of the income Tax Act, However no demand has been rafsed, The Company has Hled an appeal
against the said agsessment, No provision has been inade i this regards,

In the MVAT assessment for the lnancial year 2011-12 the VAT department has disallowed the set-off claimed of purchase ¥AT paid on the purchase of Gold in the
I MF Gold ETF scheme and raised a demand of Rs. 4,334,456 on the Company, The Company has atso filed an appeal against this assossment. No trrovision has been
madu in this regards, An adhoc payment under protest of Rs, 1,500,008 had been made during the previous year.

Capital Commilment (net of advances) is Rs. 393,610 (Rs Nil)

Dues to Micro, Small and Modiem Enterprises:
Trade Payables do not include any amount payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Dovelopment Act, 2006 (MSMEDA) whicl came into force from Cetober 02, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro,
Smatl and Medium enterprises. On the basts of the information and records available with the management, Lhe foltowing disclosures are made for the amounts due

to the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, which have registered with the competent authorities,

2020 2019

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end il Wit
Interest due thereon Mit Nit
Amaunt of inLerest paid by the company In terms of section 16 of the MSMEDA, along with the amount of the

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year Nil Nil
Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which hive been paid but beyend

the appointed day during the yoar) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMEDA Nil Wil
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year Nil Mil

Details of Payment to Auditors
AMOGBL in rupoes
2020 2019
Audit 1,260,000 3,20,060
For tax andit 1,15,000 1,145,000
For Certification and othar natcers 4,565,004 365,000
Total 9,00,000 8,00,000




25.13 Brokerage and Scheme relatod expenses

{a)  As per SEBI circolar claled_ 22 Getober 2018, in terms of Regulation 52(1) of SEB! {Mulual Funds) Regutations, 1996, alt scheme related expenses including commission
praidd te distributors, by whatever name it may be calfed shall necessarlly be paid from the Schere only within the regulatory tmits and nol from the bools of Asset
Management Companles{AMC), its asseciate, spansor, trustes or any olher antity through any rovte, Hence, no expenses have been accounted in the books of th

Campany from the date of the Circutar.
(1} in view of the above, previous flgures are not comagrable in the current year,

25.14 Transfer Pricing;

The company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of Information required by transfer pricing legistation under section 92.92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Management is of the opinfon that its domestic transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid tegislations will not have any impact on the fin,
staterents, partieularly on the amount of tax expense. .

25.1% The directors have, al the time of approving the financlal statements, assessed the potential tmpact of the COVIO-19 global [pandemic on the Company, The
coronavirus outhreak is & new emerging risk to the global economy. The Company's business may be fimpacted due to decrease i the NAY of the undertying funds on
which the management fees for the Company is calculated. Business continuity plans have been Invoked to maintain business operations following luckdowns across
India which will help to ensure business resllience. The situation is clanglng so rapidly that the full impact cannat yet be understood, but the Company will contfave

to monitor the sitvation closely,

The directors consider that the Company has adequate financial resources Lo continue in operational existence for the foresecabie future and therefore, continue to

adopt \he going concern basis of actounting in preparing the financial statements.

25,36 IDBI Bank Intimaled the Company about their decision te sell 100% stake in the Company to Muthoot Finance Limited and execution of Share Purchase Agreement for

the same. Accordingly, the Board of the Company passed resolution in thelr meeting held ony 21 Novernber , 2019 and noted the same.

The Share Purchase Agreement for sale of 100% of the Company by IDBI Banik Lirsited and IDBI Capital Markers & Securities Limited was executed on Novembeor 22,

2079 and the same was submitted (o SEBI alongwith other documents for thelr consideration and approval.

SEBI is cansidering the application and required further nformation and documents for the same, which were submitted o SEBI, Approval from SEBI is still awaitad,

25,17 Expenditure in foreign exchange: Distributor's ncentive (Traveiling Expenses) Rs, Nit-/-(P.Y.- s, 140,881/-}
25,18 Figures have been rounded off to Lhe nearest rupee,

25.1% Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessar
pertam to previous yeai. (Refer 25,13 above)

As per our attached repory of even date
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